
GrantThornton

Finan cial Statements and Independent
Auditor's Report

"Prometey Bank" Limited Liability
Company

31, December 201,5



"Prometey Bank" Limited Liability Company
Financial statements
31 December 2015

Contents

Independent auditor's report

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Statement of financial position

Statement of changes in equity

Statement of cash flows

Accompanying notes to the financial statements

Page

1

3

4

5

6

7



GranrtThornton

Unr4hu, tunqtp, tunFhFluu{nrprnrlr
Audit Tax, Advisory
qnuLp fannLpnL hLFbnLb2Lth uL4uJ
Memb€Iof GIanLThornkrn Internalional Ltd

Independent auditor's report
qnuup OnFUpnU OPC
tl, p bpbLuU 0012
.{Luqup2lLrL 8/1

I + 374 10 260 964
$.+ 374 10 260 961

Grant Thornton CJSC
8/1 Vagharshyan str
00'12 Yerevan, Armenia

T + 374 10 260 964
F * 374 '10 260 961

www,grantthornton.am

To the Pattrcipants and Board of Directors of "Ptometey Bank" Lirnited LiabiJity Company:

We have au,dited the accompanying financial statements of "Prometel'Bank" LLC (the 'Bank'),
which comprise the statement of ltnancial position as of Decembet 31, 20'1.5, and the statement of
ptoflt or lor;s and othet comptehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the yeat then ended, and a summary of signifrcant accounting policies and other

explanatory infotmation.

Management'.r P.eqo nibi/iE for the Financial S tatem entt

ManagemerLt of the audited entity is tesponsible for the preparation and fak presentation of these

financial statements in accotdance with International Financial Repoting Standards, and fot such

intemal control as management determines is necess^ty to enable the preparation of ltnancial

statements 1.hat are free from material misstatement. whethet due to fraud or ertot.

Aa ditorl Re.rpo nsi bi litlt

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ftnancial statements based on our audit. We

conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standatds

require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the f,rnancial statements are free ftc,m material misstatement.

An audit i:nvolves perforrning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the auditot's judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material rnisstatement of t}e h,nancial statements, whethet

due to fraud or error. In making those dsk assessments, the auditor: considets internal conftol

relevant to the entity's prepatation and fatt presentation of the Ftnancjal statements in otder to

design audit procedures that ate approptrate in the citcumstances, b,ut not fot the purpose of
expressing ,m opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting poJicies used and the re,asonableness of accounting

estimates nrade by management, as well as evaluating the ovetall ptesentation of the financial

statements.
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Nfe believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
fot our audit opinion.

Opinion

In out opinion, the financial statements glve a true and fair view of the financial position of
'?tometey BanlC'LLC (the 'Bank') as at December 31, 201.5, and of its financial performance and
cash flows fbt the yeat then ended in accordance with International Financial Repoting Standards.

Enphasis of a Matter

We &aw attention to note 36 to the financnl statements. Financial statements of the Bank have
been ptepared based on the Bank's going concern principle. In 201,4 the Board of RA Central
Bank decided to determine the minimum size of total regulatory capitalAMD 30,000,000 thousand
as of January 1',2017 and after that period. Due to the assurance of the Bank's shareholders and
management the mentioned above requfuement vdll be met by the replenishment of the Bank's
chartet capitd and other elements of the regulatory capital. Our opinion is not qualified due to this
mafief.

Vahagn Payan

Auditor
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Statenlent of profit or loss and other
1.comD.renenslve lncomeI

In thousand Amnenian drams Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31,2014

Interest and similar income

Interest and similar expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commlssion income

Net trading income

Net gains on investments available for sale

Other income

lmpairment charge

Staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of
intangible assets

Other expenses

Profit before irrcome tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other com prehenslve income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Revaluation of PPE

Income tax relating to items not reclassified

Net income from items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Items that will he reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Net unrealized losses from changes in fair value of avallable-for-
sale financial ar;sets

Net gains realized to net profit on disposal of available for sale
investments

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified

Net losses fronr items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Other comprelrenslve income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehrensive income for the year

6

6

5,878,744

(3,.119,373)

5,249,734
(2,847,616)

2,459,37',l

358,047

(320,352)

2,402,118

321,741

(450,17e)

I

I

6

o

10

11

IY

12

13

37,695

596,551

21,238

120,007

(66,637)

(994,72'tl

(267,881 )

.715,712t-

(128,438)

439,314

247,889

379,115

(361,e20)

(1,063,054)

(167,6e0)

(550,817)

1,189,91 1

(283,258)

1 ,1 96,5't 7

(228,754)

906,653 967,763

2,022,783

(404,557)

1,618,226

(1 95,091 )

(70,1 34)

53,045

(440,588)

(274,334)

142,985

(212,180l. (571,937)

(21 2,1 80) 1,046,289

694,473 2,O14,052

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 52 ate atr integtal part of these {tnzf'cial statements.
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Staternent of ftnanc:u,l posiuon

In thousand Arnenian drams As of
December 31, 2015

As of
December 31,2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from other financial institutions

Derivative finan cial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Investments available for sale

Securities pledged under repurchase agreements

Prepaid income taxes

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Repossessed assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AhID EQUITY

Llabilities
Amounts due to financial institutions

Trading financial liabilities

Amounts due trl customers

Debt securities issued

Other borrowingls

Subordinate dects

Current income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equlty
Charter capital

General reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnirgs

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

14
l6

16

17

18

z6

19

zv
21

14,559,1,27

8,923,705

36,748,0,49

488,3i87

8,587,6'14

4,000,7:t7

4,640,9:76

61,8r39

15,895,791

5,805,918

27,026

36,768,073

137,414

10,098,647
't07,072

4,171,377

4,652,163

112,591

78,010,5t34

10,520,133

794,781

33,120,887

493,680

8,413,023

7"12

497,578

303,1 1 2

77,776,072

zz

15

23

24

zc
zo

13

zt

11,241,975

3,1 06,052

29,264,468

5,908,602

740,557

3,613,413

440,772

288,088

ZJ

54,143,96i6

14,400,000

52,0'rt5

1,253,21t4

8,1 61,21i9

54,603,927

14,400,000

52,075

1,525,120

7,194,950

23,866,618 23,172,145

78,010,5t14 77,776,072

The financial statements from pages 3 to 52 were signed by the Bank's G'enetal Manager and Chief
Accountant <>n 12 4pr1.201.6.

Emil Soghonlonyan Alvatd Mkturnyan
Chief accounttnt

^. ar/

ftry
The accompanyrng notes on pages 7 to'S|are an integr4t pa*;of these financial r;tatements,
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Staternent of changes in equity

In thousand Armenian drams

Charter
capital

General
reserye

Revaluatlon
reserve of
securitles
available

for sale

Revaluation
re$erve
ol PPE

Retained
earnings Total

Bafance as ofJanuary 1,2014
Dividends to shareholders

Total transactlons with owners

Profit for the year

Other com prehensive incomel
Revaluation of PPE

Adjustment to reserve on amortizatlon or disposal of
PPE

Net unrealized losses from changers in fair value
Net gains realized to net profit on available for sale
investments

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as of December 31, 201,{

Profit for the year

Other com prehenslve Income:

Adjustment to reserve on amortization of PPE

Net unrealized losses from changes in fair value

Net gains realized to net profit on clisposal of available
for sale invostments

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as of December 31, 2015

(440,588)

(274,334)

142,985

(571,937)

14,400,000 52,075 (91,508)

1^61tr,6r8 
'6130l 

ZO14,OA

14,400,000 52,075 480,429 7,120,589 22,053,093

(8ss,000) (895,000)

- (895,000)

- 967,763

2,0it2,v83
(1,598) 1,s98

(404,557)

(895,000)

967,763

2,022,783

(440,588)

(274,334)

(261,572)

- (50,656)

(1 95,091 )

(70,134)

53,045

1,616,629 7,19't,950

906,653

59,656

23,172,',|45

906,653

(1 95,091 )

(70,134)

53,045

(212,',|80l- (59,656) 966,309 694,473

14,400,000 52,075 (303,588) 1,556,972 8,151,259 23,866,618

The accompaoying notes on pages 7 to 52 arc an'tntegral part of these financial sitatemerits.
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Staternent of cash flows
In thousand Armenian drams Year ended

December 31, 2015
Year ended

December 31,2014
Cash flows from operatlng activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for
Amortization and depreciation allowances

Net gains on disposal of PPE

lmpairment charge
Loss from revaluation of derivative financial instruments
Gains less losses from revaluation of non-trading assets and
liabiliti€s

Interest receivarble

Interest payable

Cash flowe from operating activitios before changes in
operating assets and liabllitles
(lncrease)/deaease in operating assets

Amounts due from other financial institutions

Investments available for sale

Securities pledlyed under repurchase agreements
Derivative finarrcial assets

Loans and adviances to customers

Repossessed grssets

Other assets

lncraase/(decrense) in operating liabilities

Amounts due tcl financial institutions

Amounts due to customers

Derivative finarrcial liabilities

Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities before income tax

Income tax pakl

Net cash from used in operating activities

Cash flows fro'm investlng activities
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investlng activitles

Cash flows frc'm financing activities

lssue/(redemption) of debt securities

Dividends paid

Other long temr loans

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year (Note 14)

1,199,911

267,991

66,637

2,091

54,796

(1 67,060)

6,448

1,195,517

167,690

(5,175)

361,920

26,460

(1 92,840)

(1 06,030)

1,430,684

(3,191 ,259)
(604,560)

(800,298)

24"945

(242,i701

173,054

34,,907

(590,166)

3,528,677

52,121

't,448,542

(1,558,472)

3,307,594

(4,917,962)

(53,486)

(5,422,9't4)

235,691

(43,5s4)

5,981,586

(35,986)

(3,e3s)

113,635

(1 84,265)

(6s,563)

(e49,301)

(327,786)

(24s,828l.

(97,281)

(1,277,087)

(331,479)

5,746

(s7,281 )

(5,452,455)

4,552,733

(325,733)

1,478,973
(895,000)

(245,s13)

(899,'t22) 338,060

(1,246,831)

15,895,791

(89,833)

(1,264,760)

16,394,988

765,563

14,559,127 15,895,791

Supplementary information:

Interest received

Interest paid

5,71 1,684

(3,606,608)

5,143,704
(2,852,109)

The accomparrying notes on pages 7 to 52 are an integral part of these ftnancial statemeots.
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Accotnpanying notes to the finanrcial
statenlents

7 Ptincipat activities
"Ptometey llank" LLC (the 'Bank") is a limited liabiJity company, which was incolporated in the
Republic of fumenia on 01.06.1990. The Bank is tegulated by the legislation of RA and conducts its
business unrler license number 27, gtanted on 02.10.1991 by the Central Bank of Armenia (the
"cBA',).

The Bank is a member of Individuals deposit cornpensation guaraqtee state system of RA , as well
as merrlber c,f Union of Banks of Arrnenia, AtCa, MasterCard payment siystems.

The Bank ac:cepts deposits from the public and extends credits, transfers payments in Armenia and
abroad, exchanges currencies and provides other banking services to its commercial and retail
customefs.

The head olfice of the Bank and its 7 btanches ate located in Yereva'n; one branch is located in
Gyumri, one branch in Abovyan and anothet branch is located inYanadzor.

The registeled office of the Bank is located at 44/2 Hanrapetutyan str, Yerevan 0010, Republic of
Armenia.

2 Armenian buslness environment
fumenia cotrtinues to undergo poJitical and economic changes. As an emetging rnarket, Armenia

does not possess a developed business and regulatory inftastructute that generally exists in a more

matufe free market economy. In addition, economic conditions continue to limit the volume of
activity in the financial markets, which may not be reflective of the values for Frnanctal instruments.

The main obstacle to further economic development is a low level o{'ecor}omic and institutional
developmenrt, along with a centtalized econornic base.

Deterioratiorn of economic situation of countdes collaborating vzith the RA led to the shottage of
money transifers from abroad, upon which the economy of Armenia is significandy dependant.

Further declline in international prices of mining ptoducts, uncertainties due to possibilities of
attraction ol direct capital investments, inflation, may lead to detedoration of the situation of
Armenian e,cooolny and of the Bank, Flowever, as the numbet of variables and assumptions

involved in these uncertainties is big, management cannot make a reliable estirnate of the amounts

by which the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the Bank may tre affected.

Managernenrl of the Bank believes that in the curreflt conditions approPriate measures are

irnplementecl in order to ensure economic stabiJity of the Bank.

3 B:rsis of preparation
3.1 Statement of compliance
The fnancial statements of the Bank have been prepated in accordance vdth Intemational Financial

Reporting Sitandards ("IFRS") as developed and published by the International Accounting

Standards Eioard (IASB), and Interpretations issued by the Intetnational Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee ('IFRIC").
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3.2 Basis of mGasurement
The finaricial statements have been prepared on a fau value basis for fir:Lancial assets and liabilities at
fair value tlrtough ptoht or loss and available for sale assets, except those for which a reliable
fneasufe of fat value is not available. Othet financiil. assets and liabilities, as well as non-Frnancial
assets and liabilities ate stated at amorized or historical cost, with the exception of land and
buildings, wlrich are stated at revalued amount.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency
Functional currency of the Bank is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Bank operates. The Bank's functional cuffeflcy and the Bank's preseniation currency is Armenian
Dram ('AMD'), since tlris currency best teflects the economic substarrce of the undedying events
aod trarisactions of the Bank. The Bank prepares statements for regulatory pufposes in accordance
with legislatjve requirements of the Republic of Armenia. These f:rrrar.Lr:ial statements are based on
the Bank's books and tecords as adjusted and reclassiFred in order to comply vdth IFRS. The
financial staternents are presented in thousands of AMD, which is not cr>nvertible outside Atmenia.

3.4 Ghanges in accounting pollcies
The Bank applied for the first time certain standards and amendmelts, which ate effective for
annual periods beginning on ot aftet 1. January 2015, The Bank has uot early adopted any orher
standard, intelptetation ot arnendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. Although the
new standar<ls and arnendments described below and applied for the firsrt time in 201,5, did not have
a matenal impact on the annual financial statements of the Bank.

o DefiLned Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments rto IAS 19).

o Annual Improvernents to IFRSs 201,0-201,2 Cycle.

o Annual Imptovements to IFRSs 201.1-201.3 Cydrq

3.5 Standards, amendments and interpretations not yett applied by the Bank
At the date of authotization of these Ftnancial staternents, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to the existing Standards have been published but are not yet effective. The Bank has

not eady 2i6,pted any of these pronouncements.

Management anticipates thzt all, of the pronouncements u/i[ be adopted in the Bank's accounting
policy fot th,: Ftst period beginning after the effective date of the pronor:ncement.

Managernenl; does not anticipate a material impact on the Bank's ftna:ncial statements from these

Arnendments, they are presented belovr.

IFRS 9 Financial fnsftuments (2074)

The IASB recently released IFRS 9 Financial Infirunenh (2014), represe'nting the completion of its
project to replace IAS 39 Financial lrstrumefi;: Recognition and Meas,rrement, The new standard

introduces extensive changes to IAS 39's guidance on the classiFrcation and measurement of
ftnancial assets and introduces a new 'expected ctedit loss' model for the impairment of financial
assets. IFRS 9 also ptovides new guidance on the application of hedge accounting.

The Bank's tnanagernent has yet to assess the impact of IFRS 9 on these financial statements. The
new standard is requited to be applied for annual reporting pedods begnning on or after I Jartuary
201,8.
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The followinig ne\r/ or amended standatds are not expected to have a signiFrcant impact of the

Bank's firrancial statements :

o Clarifcatiion of Aueptable Methofu of Depredation and. Anoftintion (Anenalraenfi to IAS | 6 and.IAS 38).

c Anauallmprluemenfi to IFRST 2012-20/4 Cycle - uariour $andarfu,

c Dirclowrrt Initiatiae (Amendmenfi to IAS 1),

4 Srlmmary of signiflcant accounting policies
The folloudrrg signifrcant accounting policies have been applied rn the preparation of the financial
staternents, The accounting policies have been consistently applied.

4.1 Rercognition of income and expenses
Revenue is lecognized to the extent that it is probable that the econornic benehts will flow to the
Bank and tlte revenue can be reliably measured. Expense is recogni:zed to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits vrill flow ftom the Bank and the expense can be reliably
measured, Tlhe folloving specific criterjra rnust also be met before revenue is recognized:

lnterest income and expense
Interest incorne and expense fot all interest-bearing hnancial instrurnents, except for those classified
as held for trading or designated at fak value through proht or loss, arer recognised within "interest
income" andl "intefest expense" in the statement of profit ot loss and othef comprehensive income
using the effective interest method.

Once the rer:otded value of a ftnancial asset or a group of similar Ftnancial assets has been reduced

due to an iurpaitment loss, intetest income continues to be recognized using the original effective
interest rate rrpplied to the new cattyng amount.

Fee and commission income

Loan origination fees for loans issued to customers are defered (together with related dfuect costs)

and recogrris,ed as an adjustment to the effective yield of the loans. Fr:es, comrnissions and other
incorne and expense iterns are generally recotded on an accrual basis when the service has been

provided. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are recorded based on the

applicable service contracts. Asset management fees related to investmr:nt funds are fecorded over

the period tlre service is ptovided. The same principle is applied for vrealth management, financial
planning and. custody services that are continuously provided over an ext-ended period of time.

Dividend income
Revenue is rr:cognized when the Bank's right to receive the payment is established. According to the

Tax Legislation of Republic of Atmenia dividend income is non-taxable.

Net trading income
Net trading:income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes

all, rcaldz,ed and unreaized fair value changes, intetest, dividends and firreign exchange differences

related to trading assets and liabilities. Net trading income also inchrdes gains less losses ftom
trading in foreign currencies and is recognized in proltt or loss vzhen lhe cortesponding service is

provided.
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4.2 Foreign currencies
Transactionr; in foteign cuffencies ate initially recorded in the functional cuffency fate ruling at the

date of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting ftom the translation of trading assets are

tecognised ilr the statement of profit or loss and other comptehensive irrcome in net trading income,

while gains less losses resulting frorn translation of non-trading assets are recorded in the statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in other income or other expense. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foteign currencies ate retranslaterl at the functional curfency
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary secudties denominated in foreign currency classified as

available for sale ate analysed between translation diffetences resulting from changes in the

amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences :related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in proht or loss, and othet
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in the oum equity.

Non-rnonetary items that arc rneasured in tetms of histotical cost in a foreign currency are

translated ur;ing the exchange rates as the dates of the initial transa<:tions. Non-monetary items

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are tfanslated using the exchange fates at the date uzhen

the fat valur: was determined. Translation diffetences on non-monetarf items, such as equities held

at fak value through profit or loss, are repo4ed as pnft of the fair value gain or loss. Translation

diffetences ()n non-mooetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,

are included in the fair value teserve in equity.

Differences between the contractual exchange :-ate of ^ certain transaction and the prevailing

a-vetage exclLange rate on the date of the transaction are included in gains less losses from trading in
foreign currt:ncies in net trading income.

The exchangfe rates at year-end used by the Bank in the pteparation of the financial statements afe as

follovrs:

December 31, 2015 December 31,2014

10

AMD/1 US Dollar

AMD/1 EUR

483.75

528.69

474.97

577.47

4.3 Taxation
Incorne tax ,cn the proht for the year comprises cuffent and deferted tax. Incorne tax is recognized

in profit or loss except to the extent that it telates to items recognizecl directly in equity, in vzhich

case it is rec,rgnized in equity,

Curent tax:is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. In the case when Frnancial staternents ate authorized for issue before apptopriate tax

retums are siubmitted, taxable profits or losses are based on estimates. Tax authorities might have

more sftingent position in inteqpreting tax legislation and in teviewing tax calculations. As a result

tax authoritr.es might claim additional taxes for those transactions, fot which they did not claim

previously. ,\s a tesult significant additional taxes, flnes and penalties could arise. Tax review can

include 3 calendar years immediately preceding the year of. a tevievr, In certain cfucumstances tax

review can include evefl mote oeriods.

Defered ta:!: assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary diffetences using the liabiJity

method. Deferred income taxes are provided for all. temporary differences arising between the tax
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bases of assets and liabilities and theit carrying values for. lnancial reporting pu{poses, except where
the deferedl income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liabiJity in a

ffansaction rthat is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting ptofit nor taxable profit or loss,

A defered tax asset is recotded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profrt will be
available agerinst which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Defered tax assets and
liabilities are rneasured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realtzed
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred in,come tax is provided on temporary differences adsing on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except where the timing of the teversal of the temporary difference
can be conffolled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The Republic of Atmenia also has various operating taxes, which are assessed on the Bank's
activities. These taxes are included as a component of other expenses in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive incorne.

4.4 Gash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances on correspondent accounts with the
Centtal Bank of Atmenia (excluding those funds deposited for the settlement of ArCa payment
cards), and amounts due ftom other banks, which can be convertecl into cash at short notice,
includrng hilghly liquid investrnents maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition rhat arc

teadily convertible into known amounts of cash and which ate subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash and car;h equivalents are carried at amortised cost.

4.5 Amounts due from other financial institutions
In the norm.al course of business, the Bank maintains advances or deposits for various periods of
time 'vith odrer banks. Loans and advances to banks with a lrxed maturity term are subsequendy

rneasured at amotlJLzed cost using the effective interest method. Those that do not have fixed
maturities ate cartied at amortized cost based on maturities estimated by management. Amounts
due ftom odret financial institutions are cartied net of any allowance fot impairment losses.

4.6 Financial instruments
The Bank rr:cognizes financial assets and liabilities on its staternent of frnancial position vrhen it
becomes a pafiy to the contractual obligation of the instrument. Regular way putchases and sales of
ftnancial assets aod liabilities are recognised using setdement date accounting, Regular way purchases

of ftnancial insffuments that will be subsequently measured at fair value between trade date and

settlement drate ate accounted for in the same wav as for acquired instruments,

When finan<:ial assets and liabilities are recognised initially, they are measured atfakvalue, plus, in
the case of investrnents not at fair value through profit ot loss, dirsstly atftibutable transaction costs,

After initial lecognition all financial liabrlities, other than liabilities at fair value through proht or loss

(including h,:ld for trading) are measured at amortized cost using effective intetest method. After
initial recogtrition financial liabilities at fair value through proFtt or loss are measured at fait value,
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The Bank classihed its financial assets into the follovzing categories:

ftntncial instruments at fak vzlue through profit or loss,
held-to-matudty investments,
loans and receivables,

available- for-s ale financial ins truments and.

The classiFrr:ation of investments befween the categories is determinecl at acquisition based on the
guidelines established by the management. The Bank determines the classiFrcation of its hnancial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
each financial year-end.

Financialassefs at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two subcategories: financial assets held for trading and those designated at fatt
value throulgh profit of loss. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired for the purpose
of selling in the shott-term or if so designated by management from rhe initial acquisition of that
asset,

In the nofnnal coutse of business, the Bank enters into various derivative financjal instruments
including futures, forwards, swaps and options in the foreign exchange and capital markets. Such
financial instruments are held for trading and are initially recognised in accordance vdth the policy
for initial recognition of financial instruments and are subsequently me4sured at fair value, The fair
values are estimated based on guoted market prices or pricing models that take into account the
cuffent rnar.ket and contractual prices of the undedying instruments and other factors. Derivatives
ue catried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is negative.

Derivative itrstruments embedded in other financial instruments arc treated as separate dedvatives if
their risks and characteristics ate not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
conftacts artl not carried at fair value vdth unrealised gains and losses reported in financial results.
An embeddr:d dedvative is a component of a hybrid (combined) financial instrument that includes
both the derivative and a host conftact vdth the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument l'ary in a similar u/ay to a stand-alone derivative.

Financial assets and Frnancial liabilities are designated at fak value through proht or loss when:

Doing so signihcantly reduces measurement inconsistencies that would arise if the related
derivatives vrete treated as held for trading and the undedying fitancial instruments were caried
at amortisied cost fot such as loans and advances to customers or banks and debt secudties in
issue;

Certain irrvestments, such as equityinvestments, thatate rnanaged and evaluated on a fatvalue
basis in a<:cotdance with a documented risk management or investment strategy and reported to
key management petsorinel on that basis are designated at fak value tlrrough profit and loss; and
Financial iinstruments, such as debt securities held, containing one or rnore embedded dedvatives
significandy modifr the cash flows, are designated at fair value through profit and loss.

Derivatives rrte also classified as held for trading unless they arc designated as effective hedging
instruments, Gains or losses on financial assets held for trading are recognised in the statement of
proflt or loss and other comprehensive income.
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H e I d-to- m atrJ rity i nv e stm e nts

Held-to-matlrity investmeots are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Bank's managernent has the positrve intention and ability to hold to manrrtry.
Wete the Bank to sell other than insignificant amount of held-to-malrity assets not close to their
maturity, the entite category would be reclassified as available-for-sale. IIeld-to-maturity investrnents
are carried at amorized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for
impairment,

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable lpayments, which arise when
the Bank provides rnoney directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.

Loans granted by the Bank udth f,rxed maturities ate initially recognized at fak value plus related
ttansaction r:osts. Whefe the fait value of consideration given does not equal the fair value of the
loan, for example vrhete the loan is issued at lower than market rates, the difference between the fair
value of consideration given and the fair value of the loan is recognized as a loss on initial
recognition of the loan and included in the statement of profit or loss and other cornptehensive
income as losses on origination of assets. Subsequently, the loan cartling value is measured using
the effective interest method. Loans to customers that do not have fi:i:ed maturities are accounted
for under the effective interest method based on expected matudty. Loans to customers are carried
net of any allowance for impafument losses,

Av ai I abl e-fo r:s al e fi n a n c i al i n st ru me nts

Investrnents available for sale represent debt and equity investments that are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of tirne, which may be sold in response to needs, for liquidity or changes in
interest tater;, exchange rates or equity prices. After initial recognition available-tot sale financial
assets ale ffireasured at fat valve with gains ot losses being recognised as a separate component of
other comprehensive income until the investrnent is derecognised or until the investment is

determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss prr:viously reported in equity is
included in the staternent of profit or loss and other cornprehensive income. However, interest
calculated usiing the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of proht or .[oss and

other complehensive income. Dividends on available-for-sale equiry instruments are recognised in
ptofit o1 loss vzhen the Bank's right to receive payment is established,

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted matket bid prices at the close of business oo the balance sheet date. Fot
investments where there is no active market, f.at valve is determined using valuation tec.hniques.

Such techniques include using recent arm's length market transactiorrs, reference to the cuffent
market value of anothef instrument, which is substantially the same, and discounted cash flow
analysis. Otherwise the investments afe stated at cost less any allowance for impairment.

4,7 lmpairment of finaneial assets
The Bank asr;esses at each balance sheet date whether a ftnancial asset or group of financial assets is

impafued.

Assefs carried at amoftized cost
A financial arrset or a group of frnancial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
thete is objer:tive evidence of impairment as a result of one or more ev'ents that occufred after the

initial recognition of the asset ("loss event") and that loss event (or el'ents) has an impact on the
estirnated future cash flows of the financial asset or gtoup of ftnancial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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Criteda useri to determine that there is objective evidence of an innpafument loss may include
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is expedencing significant financial rlifficulty
(for exampl,e, eguity tatio, net income petcentage of sales), default or delinquency in interest or
pdnctpal Palr/ments, breach of loan covenants or conditions, deteriotation in the value of collateral,
the probabjJity that they will enter banktuptcy or other financial reorganization anrC where
obsewable clata indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estirnated future cash flows. such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that corelate with defaults.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financid.
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is detetmined that no objective evidence of impairment exisrs for an
individually assessed Frnancial asset, whether signihcant or not, the asset is included in a group of
hnancial assr:ts with similar credit dsk characteri.stics and that group of financial assets is co.[ectively
assessed for impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
lmPaffnent.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assr:ts carried at amortised cost
has been incwred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's catr.ytng
amount and the Ptesent value of estirnated future cash flows (excluding future credit los;ses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective intr:rest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be
reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in the
statement oF profit or loss and other comprehensive incorne. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable intetest tate, the discount :ate for measuring; any impairment loss is the
cuffent effective interest rate determined undet the contract. The Bank trray measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised Frnancial
asset reflects the cash flows that may result ftom foreclosure less costs :for obtaining and selling the
collateral, wtLether or not the foteclosure is probable.

Fot the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are gtouped on the basis of
the Bank's irLternal credit gtading system that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset t''pe,
rndustry, geogaphical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively e'rraluated for rmpafument are

estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss
expetience fr>r assets vdth credit dsk characteristics similar to those in the group. Histor.ical loss
expedence is; adjusted on the basis of cuffent observable data to reflect the effects of curent
conditions that did not affect the period on urhich the historical loss expedence is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not cutrr:ntly exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally
consistent with changes in related observable data from pedod to pedod (for example, changes in
unemployment tates, Property prices, payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the
probability orFlosses in the gtoup and their magnitude). The methodology aod assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are teviewed regulady by the Bank to reduce any differences between
loss estimateri and actual loss exoerience.
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Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
futute recorrery 

^nd 
all collatetal has been rcaltzed or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a

subsequent year., the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occruring after the impairment ulas recognized, the previously tecognized impairment loss is
increased or: reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If future uzri.te-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the allowance account,

Impairment allowances of frnancial assets have been established in the lrnancial statements on the
basis of exir;ting economic conditions. Bank is not able to predict how conditions may change in
Armenia, and what impact these changes may have on the adequacy of the impairment allowance of
Ftnancial ass,ets in future oeriods.

Renegotiated loans
S7here posslble, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This
may involve extending the payment atrangements and the agreefnent of new loan conditions. Once
the tetms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longel considered past due. Management
continuousl;r reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all, criteia ate met and that future payments
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan's otiginal effective interest rate.

Av ail able-for'-s ale fin ancial assefs
If an avatlable-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal Payment and amorization) and its current fair value, less any impairnrent loss
previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other cornprehensive inr;ome, is
transfered from equity to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Revetsals ol' impairment in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
tecognized in the statement of profit ot loss and other comprehensive incorne but accounted for in
other comprehensive income in a separate component of equity. Reversals of impairment losses on
debt instrunrents are tevetsed through the statement of profit of loss and other comprehensive
income if thr: increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the imp,afumsnl loss was recognised in ptoltt or loss.

4.4 Derrecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assiefs

A financial rrsset (ot, whete applicable a p^rt of a Frnancial asset ot part of a gtoup of similar
frnancial asserts) is derecognised where:

r the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
r the Bank has ttansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the as;set, or retained the dght to

receive cash flows from the asset, but has assurned an obligation to pay them in full vdthout
material drelay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arangernent; ancl

o the Bank either (a) has ttansferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has

neither trilnsferred not retained substantially all the dsks and reu'ards of the asset. but has

transfetrerl control of the asset.

Whete the llank has transferred its dghts to receive cash flows frofn an asset and has neithet
transferred not retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, tht: asset is recognised to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvernent in the asset.

Continuing i:rvolvement that takes the form of a gaarantee over the trarLsferred asset is measured at
tJre lower of the odginal carrying amount of the asset and the maxirnum amount of consideration
that the Banl: could be requfued to repay.
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Whete continuing involvement takes the fotm of a wdtten andf or purchased option (including a
cash-setded option or similat provision) on the transfened asset, the extent of the Bank's continuing
involvement: is the amount of the transferred asset that the Bank may repurchase, except that in the
case of a \xtitten Put option (including a cash-settled option or similar ptovision) on an asset

measuted at fafu vahrc, the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement is lirnited to the lower of the
fait value of the uansferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is detecognised when the obligation under the Iiability is discharged or cancelled
or expires,

Where an e:<isting frnancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terins, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modiFred, such an exchange or
modiFrcation is treated as a derecognition of the original liabiJity an<l the recognition of a new
liability, and the diffetence in the respective carc5nng amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or lossr and other comprehensive income.

4.9 Relpurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
Sale and repurchase agreements ("repos") are treated as secured financi4g transactions. Securities
sold uqdet s;rle and repurchase agreements are fetained in the statement of financial position and, in
case the tfatrsferee has the right by contract of custom to sell or repledge them, reclassified as

securities phdged undet sale and repwchase agreernents and faced as the separate balance sheet
item. The corresponding liability is presented v/ithin amounts due to Frnancial institutions or
customets.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell ("reverse repo") ate recorded as amounts due from
othet hnancial institutions or loans and advances to customers as appfopriate and are not
recognb'ed Lr the statement of financial position. The difference between sale and repurchase price
is treated as interest and accrued over the life of repo agreements using the effective yield method.

If assets purr:hased undef an agfeement to resell ate sold to third parties, the obligation to return the
secudties is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value.

4.1O Securities lending and borrowing
Securities lerrding and borrowing transactions are usually collatetalised by securities or cash. The
transfer of the securities to counterpafties is only reflected in the statement of f,rnancial position if
the risks and rewatds of ownership are also transferred. Cash advancecl or leceived as collateral is

recorded as an asset or liabilitv.

Secudties bo;nowed are not recognized in the statement of financial posi.tion, unless they are, sold to
third parties, in which case the obligation to return the securities is tecorded as a trading liab:ility and
measured at tair value with any gains or losses included in "Net trading income".

4.17 Lerases
Operating - Bank as /easee

Leases of ast;ets under which the dsks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the
lessor ate classiFred as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease ale recoglrised as

exPenses in the financial incorne on a straight-line basis over the lease tetm and included into other
operating exlrenses.
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4.12 Property, plant and equipment
Ptopetty, plant and equipment ("PPE') are recorded at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Bank's buildings and land are presentedatfatrvalue less accumulated depreciation. If
the tecoverable value of PPE is lowet than its carcytngamount, due to cifcumstances not considered

fo be temponty, the respective asset is written down to its recoverable value. Land is caried at fatr
value. It has unlirnited useful life and thus is not depreciated,

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estirnated usefirl life of the
asset. The fc,llo*in* depreciation rates have been applied:

Useful life Rate
(years)

17

(%)

Buildings

Computers

Vehicles

Other fixed assets

40

J

5

2,5

JJ.5

20

zu

Leasehold inrprovements are capitalized and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives on a straight-line basis. Assets under the course of construction afe accounted based on
actual expenditures less any impaitment losses. Upon completion of construction assets are
ttansferred to ProPerty plant and equipment and accounted at their can:yng afnounts. Assets under
the course otF construction are not depreciated until they are ready for usage.

Repairs and mainten^flce ate charged to the statement of profit or losis and other comprehensive

income dudrrg the period in which they are incurred. The cost of majc,r renovations is included in
the carrying amount of tlre asset when it is incured and vhen it satisfies the criteria fbr asset

recognition. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining usefirl life of the related asset.

Gains and losses on disposals are detetmined by compadng proceeds with carrying amount and arc
included in operating profrt,

The frequency of tevaluation of land and buildings depend on changes in fak value of assets. In case

of significant divergences between fair value of revalued assets and their carrying amounts further
tevaluation is conducted. Revaluation is conducted for the whole class of property, plant and
equipment.

Any revaluation surplus is credited to the tevaluation reserve for propetty and equipment included
in the tevalulttion reserve for ptopety and eq,riFrnent in equity section of the statement of hnancial
position, excePt to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised itr the statement of ptoFrt or loss and other comprehensive income, in which case the

increase is tecognised in the statement of proht or loss and other comprehensive income. A
revaluation deficit is recognised in the staternent of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
excePt that a deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus on the same asset is directly offset against
the sulplus irr the revaluation reserve for property and equipment.

When revalur:d assets afe sold, the amounts attributed to disposed item of assets and included in the
tevaluation roserve are transferred to retained eamings.
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4.13 Intangible assets
Intangible assets include computer softwafe, licences and othet.

Intangible assets acquired sepatately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are caffied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accurnulatedi impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either hnite
or indefinite,, Intangible assets urith finite lives are amortised on a straftSht-line basis over the useful
econornic llres of 10 years and assessed for impairment whenever thete is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. Arnonisation periods and methods for intangible assets with hnite
useful lives ate reuewed at least at each financial year-end.

Intangible a;sets with indehnite useful lives ate not amortised, but tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful life of an intangible asset vrith an
indeFrnite lif'e is revtewed annually to determine whether indefrnite life assessment continues to be
supportable.

Costs assocjated with maintaining computer software programmes arr: recorded as an expense as

incuned.

4.14 Repossessed assets
In certain cifcumstances, assets are repossessed follovring the forecl.osute on loans that are in
default. Rep,rssessed assets are measured at the lower of cost and fur value less costs to sell.

4.15 Grants
Gtants relating to the assets are included in other liabilities a\d arc credited to the statement of
Profit or loss and other comptehensive income on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the

related assett;.

4.16 Borrowings
Borowings, which include amounts due to the Cental Bank and Government, amounts due to
Furancial institutions, arnounts due to customers, debt securities issuecl and subotdinated debt are

initially tecol5nised at the fa:u value of the considetation received less directly attdbutable transaction

costs. After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective intr3fest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statemefrt of proht or loss and

other comFrehensive income when the liabilities are derecogniserl as well as through the

afnortisation pfocess.

4.17 Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuet to make specified payments to
reirnbuse ttre holder fot a loss it incurs because a specifted debtor fails to make payrnents 'il/hefi
due, in accc,rdance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such finanr:ial guarantees are given to
banks, finanr:ial institutions and other bodies on behalf of custofners to secure loans, overdrafts and

other bankin g faciJities.

Financial guatantees are initially recognized in the financial statemerrts at fak value, in "Other
liabilities", being the premium received. Following initial recognition, the Bank's liability under each

guafantee is measured at the higher of the amortised pternium and the lbest estimate of expenditure
tequired to settle any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantee.

4.14 Provisions
Provisions a::e recognised when the Bank has a ptesent legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, and it is ptobable that an outflow of resources embodyine economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the arnount of obligation can be made.
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4.19 G:rpital
Chafter capital

Extetnal costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination,

ate shown ars a deduction frorn the proceeds in equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration

received over the pat value ofshares issued is recognised as additional paid-in capital,

Retained eamings
Include retained eamings of curtent and previous periods.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a Jiability and deducted from equity at the balance sheet date only if
they are der:lared before or on the balance sheet date. Dividends are disclosed when they are

proposed before the balance sheet date or proposed or declated aftel the balance sheet date but

before the financial statements are authorised fot issue.

Dividends praid to shareholders arc payable from the ptofit after tax and accotding to the Tax

legislation of RA are flon-taxable.

Propefty rev al u ation s u rpl u s
The properly revaluation surplus is used to tecotd incteases in the fait value of buildings and

decteases to d1s extent that such decrease relates to an inctease on the same asset previously

recognised h equity.

Rev alu ation rese Ne for av ailable-for-sale securifies

This reserve recotds fair value changes in available-for-sale-investments.

4,2O Olifsetting
Financial assiets and liabilities, and incorne and expenses, are offset and the net amount reported in

the Furancial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts

arid there ir; an intention to setde on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability

sirnultaneously,

Incorne and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, ot fot gains

and losses aising ftom a goup of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading activity.

5 Gdtlcal accounting estimates and iudgements
The preparartion of financial statements in conformity v/ith IFRS requires management to make

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported

afnounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. The estimates and associated assumptions are

based on historical experience and vafious other factots that ate believed to be teasonable under the

circumstancras, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about catrying values

of assets an,i liabilities that are not readily apparent from othet sources. Although these estimates

are based orl management's best knowledge of curtent events and actions, actual results ultimately

may diffet fi:orn these estimates.

The most significant areas of judgements and estimates vdth regards to these financial statements

afe Pfese4te,d below:

Measurement of fair values

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fak value of ftnancial instruments (whete

active rnarket quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This irrvolves developing estimates
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and assurnprtions consistent u/ith how matket participants vzould pfice the instrumeot. Management
bases its asriumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that
case fnanagr3ment uses the best infotmation available. Estimated fair values fi^y vaqt from the actual

prices that rvould be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date (see Note 32).

Cl a s s ifi c atict n of i nv e stme nt se c u ritie s
Securities owned by the Bank compdse Armenian state and corpofate bonds and corporate shares.

Upon initiaLl recognition, the Bank designates secutities as frnancial assets with recognition of
changes in fat value through proFtt or loss, held to maturity Frnancial assets or available-for-sale
furancials asisets recognition of changes in fair value through equity.

Fair value of derivatives
The fair valrles of furancial derivatives that are not quoted in active matkets ate determined by using
valuation te:chniques, Valuation of financial derivatives is applied to single currency interest rate

swaP tfansactions, cross curtency:interest swap tfansactions and foreign exchange forward contracts.

The fair va.lue of these transactions is detetmined as the diffetence tretween the ptesent value of
frxed receivable and the present value of floating obligation or vice vetsa. The present value of
floating obligation is determined using discount factors derived ftom the zeto coupon curve. Whete

valuation techniques ate used to determine fair values, they ate validated and periodically reviewed

by qualified personnel independent of the arca that created them, To the extent pncical, models

use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterpatry), volatilities

and correlations require Management to make estirnates. Changes in assumptions about these

factors coulld affect reported fair values, Any over or under estimation of these future cash flows

could requi::e a material adjustment to the carrying value of these derivatives,

Re I ated pa r,ty t ra n s act io n s
In the normal course of business the Bank enters into ttansactions with its related parties.

Judgement iis applied in detetminhg if transactions are priced at matket ot non-market interest rates,

where there is no active market fot such transactions, The basis for judgement is pricing for sirnilar

types of ftansactions vzith unrelated parties and effective interest rate anLalysis (3.efer to Note 31).

lmpairment of loans and receivables

The Bank rr:views its ptoblem loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether there are

objective c:rtteia of depreciation. In particular, judgement by rnanagement is tequired in the

estirnation of the amount and trming of future cash flows when deternining the level of allowance

required. SuLch estirnates are based on assumptions about a numbet of liactors and actual tesults rnay

diffet, resul,[ing in future changes to the allowance.

In addition to specific allovrances against individually signiFrcant loans and advances, the Bank also

makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not specifrcally

identilted as requiring a specific allowance, have a gteater dsk of r]efault than when originally

granted, This take into consideration factors such as any detetioration in country risk, industry, and

technological obsolescence, as well as identified structural weaknesses or detetiotation in cash flows.

Tax legislatiion

Armenian tax legislation is subject to varying interptetations, Refer to lrlote 30.

I m p ai rm e nt of av ail ab I e-fo r-s al e eq u ity i nv e stme nts

The Bank d.etermined that available-for-sale equiry investments are impaired when there has been a

significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is

significant or prolonged required judgement. In making this judgemenrt, the Bank evaluates among

otlrer factols, the volatility in share price. In addition, impairment may be appropiate when there is

20
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evidence of detedoration in the financial health of the

changes in technology, and opetational ot financing cash

investee, industry and sector perfofmance,

flows.

6 lnterest and similar income and expense
In thousand Annenian drams 2415 2014

Loans and advilnces to customers

Securitles available for sale

Reverse repurcrhase transactions

Amounts due from other financial institutions

Accrued interetit on individually impaired assets

Total interest and similar income

4,104,519

920,351

499,496

284,466

69,912

3,918,625

850,250

241,817

131,774
'to7,268

5,878,714 5,249,734

Amounts due to customers

Repurchase tra nsactions

Subordinate debt

Debt securities issued

Amounts due to financial institutions

Other bonowings

Total Interest and similar expense

't,684,793

't,029,17'l
286,537

292,t586

76,1t22

49,664

1,573,307

453,216

287,996

274,060

190,738

68,299

3,419,373 2,847,616

7 Fee and commission
ln thousand Annenian drams

income and expense
201 5 2014

Wire transfer fees

Plastic cards operations

Cash operations

Other fees and commissions

Total fee and t;ommission income

214,263

73,148

29,111
41,1i22

194,707

66,003

22,096

38,935

358,047 321,741

Wire transfer fees

Plastic cards operations

Conespondent accounts maintenance

Other expenseri

Total fee and commission expense

2',12,594

63,041

44,253

464

352,961

55,969

39,1 46

2,'t03

320,$52 450,1 79

I Nert tradlng Income
ln thousand Annenian drams 2015 2014

Gains less lossr:s from trading in foreign cunencies
Net loss from dlsposal of derivative instruments

Net loss from rervaluation of derivative instruments

Total net tradirrg income

655,968

(57,336)

(2,081)

987,255
(52't,481)

(26,460)

596,551 439,314
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9 Other income
In thousand Anmenian drams

22

201 5 2014

Foreign currency translation net gains of non-trading assets and
liabilities

Fines and penalties received

Income from ir;sue of guarantees and letter of credit

Net income from disposal of PPE

Gains less losses from grants relating to assets

lncome from dividends

Other income

Total other income

92,912
6,055

2,O74

1 ,916
17,050

192,840

't47,623

15,627

5,1 75

2,O74

98

15,678

120,007 379,1 1 5

{o lmpairment charge
In thousand Armenian drams ?01 5 2014

Loans and advances to customers (Note 17)

Other assets (Note 2't)

Total lmpairment charge

57,661

8,976

335,397

26,523

66,637 361,920

11 Srtaff costs
In thousand Armenian drams 2015 2014

Compensations of employees, related taxes included

Staff training costs

Other staff expenses

Total staff corsts

986,485

1,319

6,917

'1,056,948

1,695

4,41',!

994,721 1,063,054

12 Other expenses
ln thousand Armenian drams 201 5 2014

Operating leasie

Communications

Foreign currency translation net losses of non{rading assets and
liabilities

Repair and merintenance expenses of tangible assets

Security

Deposit guararltee fund expenses

Advertising costs

Consulting and other services

Representativr) expenses

Incasation expenses

Office supplierr

Taxes, other than income tax, duties

Business trip erxpenses

Financial systerm mediator expenses

Other expense,s

Total other expense

107,817

94,749

64,786

64,743

59,930

46,433
43,,621

30,,333

33,,503

21,,602

30,,444

52,369

5,,'t 86

16,,248

43,948

94,778

93,021

59,733

56,900

41,278

35,685

33,410

30,735

25,',t70

24,256

18,324

13,755

6,377

17,395

715,712 550,817
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13 Income tax expense
In thousand Armenian drams

23

2015 2014

Current tax exlrense

Adjustments of cunent income tax of previous years

Deferred tax

Total lncome tax expense

178,922

(5,515)

109,851

161,437

7,923

59,394

283,258 228,754

The corporerte income tax within the Republic of fumenia is levied at the rate of 20oh (2014: 2O%).

Differences between IFRS and RA statutory tax regulations give rise to certain temporarry
differences between the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities for ltnancial reporring

PurPoses and for profrt tax Pulposes. Defered income tax is calculaterl using the principal tax rate
of 2oo/o.

Numedcal reconciliation between the tax expenses and accounting profit is provided below:

In thousand Armenian drams
2015

Effectlve
rate (%) 2014

Effective
rate (%)

Profit before tar

f ncome tax at the rate of 20o/o

Non-deductibler expenses

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses

Net loss from revaluation of derivative
instruments

Adjustments ol' current income tax of previous
years

lncome tax exp6nse 283,258 21 228,754 19

1,189,911

237,982

37,11-8

12,957

416

(5,515)

20

3

1

1,196,s17

239,303
't4,804

(38,568)

5,292

7,923

20

1

(3)

Deferred ta:i: calculation in respect of temporary differences:

In thousand Annenian drams
As of 31 Recognized

December in profit or
2014 loss

Recognized in
other As of 31

comprehensive December
Income 20'|.5

Investments available for sale

Other liabilities

Total deferred tax assets

Amounts due fiom financial institutions

Property, plant and equipmentt

Loans and adviances to customers

Other assets

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax liabllity

53,045 87,051

(7,256)

(380,779)

(184,256)

(1 2,338)

(102,797) (584,629)

22,878

18,182 (7,0s4)
53,045 75,923

11,'t28

41,060

(6,337)

(400,544)

(66,888)

(8,063)

(481,832)

(7,054)

(sl s)

19,765

(117,368)

(4,2751

(440,7721 (109,851) 53,045 (497,578)
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In thousand A,rmenian drams

24

As of 31
December

2013
Recognized in

profit or loss

Rercognized in
other

conrprehensive
lncome

As of 31
December

2014

Available for serle investments

Other liabilitier!

Total deferrerC tax assets

Amounts due from financial institutions

Property, plant and equipment

Loans and ad\/ances to customers

Available for sale investments

Other assets

Total deferrerl tax liabilities

Net deferred llax liabillty

14,372 3,810

22,878 22,878
- 18,182

14,372

(8,388)

(234)
(e23)

(120,107)

(4,526)

(1 34, I 78)

3,810

2,051

4,247
(6s,965)

(3,537)
120,107

22,878 4'1,060

_ (6,337)

(404,s57) (400,544)
- (66,888)

(6,063)

(63,204) (284,450) (481,832)

(1 19,806) (5r3r4) (261,572) (440,772)

xDue to changes in the tax legislation in201,2, the tax base of revalued lxed assets changed and the
Bank has fotmed deferred tax liabiJity in respect of tevaluation reserve of fxed assets in 2014.

14 Giash and cash equivalents
In thousand Arrnenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December

2i0'l5 2014

Conespondenl account with the CBA

Cash on hand

Conespondenl accounts with banks

Total cash and cash equlvalents

7,949,660

6,054,842

554,625

11,391,577

3,972,'t95

532,019

'i-4,559,'127 15,895,791

As at 31 Decernber 201.5 correspondent account 'vith Central Bank of Arrnenia represents the
obligatory nrinimum reserve deposits rvith the CBA, vftich as at 37 December 2015 is computed at
2% (201,4: lloh) of cefiain obligauons of the Bank denominated in Armenian drarns and 20oh of
certain obligations of the Bank, denominated in foreign currency and amounts to AMD 6,1,64,71,9

thousand (201,4:720/0, AMD 6,628,655 thousand). There are no restsctions on the withdrawal of
funds from the CBA, however, if mini murn average requirement is :not met, the Bank could be
subject to puralties. Mandatory reserve deposits in the CBA are non-intr:rest bearing.

At 31 December 2015 the Bank had no nostro accounts (2014: either), the balances of vhich
exceeded 10% ofequity.

The follovdng non-cash transaction took place during 2015:

. RePayment of loans thtough collaterals in the amount of AII{D '1,61,,867 thousand (2014:

AMD 715,944 thousand).
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15 Amounts due from other financial institutions
In thousand Armenian drams As of31 December As of31 December

l!01s 2014

25

Reverse repulchase agreements

Loans to banks

Loans to other financial institutions

Deposited furrds in the CBA
Deposits in banks

Amounts due l'rom other financial institutions

Other accounts

Total amounts due from other financial lnstitutions

5,351,696

't,741,662
1,066,736

312,500

264,916

12',t333

65,062

3,706,100

1 ,7'15,083

252,500

68,354

63,881

8,923,705 5,805,918

Deposited lunds vdth the CBA include a guaranteed deposit for settlements via ArCa payment
system.

Deposits include deposits with maturity of for more than 90 days,

As of 31 December 2015 included in othet accounts is AMD 65,062 thousand (2014: AMD 63,881

thousand) v'hich fepresents a blocked deposit for membetship in Mastet Card payment system

Fair value of assets pledged and carcyng value of loans under reverse repurchase agreernents as of
31 Decembtx 2075 are Dresented as follows;

In thousand Armenian drams As of31 December 2015

Fair value of Carrying
collateral value of loans

As of 31 December 2014

Fair value of Carrying
collateral value of loans

RA Governmerrt bonds

Total assets prledged under reverse
repurchase allreements

5,536,265 5,351,696 4,039,019 3,706,100

5,536,265 5,351,696 4,039,019 3,706,100

As at 31 Decernber 2015 out of securities acqufued under tepurchase agreements securities in the

amount of :\MD 794,781. (2014: AMD 3,1.06,052 thousand) thousand vrere resold to third parties

and thet liabiJity is accounted in "Trading liabiiities" on the face of the statement of Frnancial

position,

Dorlvative financial instruments
In thousand Armenian drams

t6
As of 31 December 2015

Falr Fair
Notional value of value of
amount assets liabllitles

Asof31 December 2014

Fair Fan
Notional value of value of
amount assets liabilities

Derivatives herld for trading
Spot transactio ns-currency

Total derivatil,e financial
Instruments

894,416 27,026

894,416 27,026

All spot transactions of the Bank were signed with foreign counte{parties.
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17 Loans and advances to customers
In thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December As of 3'l December

:2015 2014

26

Loans

Credit lines and overdrafts

Credit cards

Reverse repulchase agreements

Less allowanc,e for loan imoairment

Total loans and advances to customers

32,922t,595

3,590,352

705i,025

490,810

34,484,880

2,237,691

6't0,297

37,308,772

(560,723)
37,332,868

(564,795)

36,748,049 36,768,073

As of 31 Decembet 2Ol5 accrued intetest income included in loans and advances to customers
arnounted t,c AMD 462,088 thousand (2014: AMD 320,011. thousand),

As of 31 t)ecembet 2015 the weighted average effective interest rates on loans and advances to
custorners was 1.4.22 0/o fot loans in AMD (201,4:75.8oh) and 11,18 oh forloans in USD, EUR and
othet fteely convertible cwrericies Q01, 4 10.8%).

As at 31 Dercernber 2015 the Bank has two botfowerc (201,4: two), whc,se loan balances exceed 10%o

of equity. 'llhe gtoss value of these loans as at 31 Decernber 2015 rrrnounts to AMD 5,765,521

thousand (2014: AMD 7,744,379 thousand),

As of 31 December 2075,loans to customers in arnount of AMD 44'.2,385 thousand (2014: AMD
4,516 thous,and) serve as collateral fot othet bouowings.

Fair value of assets pledged and carrying value of loans under reverse

31 Decembr:r 201,5 afe presented as follows:

In thousand Armenian drams 
December 31.i;iJ

Fair
value of Garrying value of

collateral loans

reputchase agteements as of

As of
December 31,2014

Fair Carrying
value of value of

collateral loans

RA Government bonds

Total assets pledged and loans under
reverse repurchase agreements

519,919 490,810

519,919 490,810

Reconciliation of loans and advances by industry sectors is as follows:

As of 3't December 2015

In thousand Armenian drams Industry Construction Trading Consumer Mortgage Service Other Total

Loans

Less allowance for loan
impairment

Net loans st,604,275 1,365,007

9,688,156 1,442,477 1 I ,840,018 5,232,931

(83,881) (77,4701 (187,440) (70,5271

3,137,168
3,746,117

(50,824) (78,463)

2,221,905 37,308,772

112,118) (s60,723)

11 ,652,578 5,162,404 3,086,344 3,6ti7,654 2,209,787 36,749,049
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In thousand Armenian drams

LI

As of 3l December 2014

lndustry Construction Trading Consumer Mortgage Siervice Other Total

Loans

Less allowance for loan
impairment

Net loans

9,956,727

(99,567)

2,879,395 1 1 ,912,900 4,417 ,866
(80,249) (249,331) (44,179)

2,503,332 3,5ri6,895 2,095,753 37,332,868

(25,033) (35,669) (30,767) (s64,795)

2,478,299 3,5:11,226 2,064,986 36,768,0739,857,160 2,799,146 11,663,569 4,373,687

Reconciliatir>n of allowance account
collective irrrpairrnent is as follows:

In thousand Armenian drams

for losses on loans and advances by industry sectors and the

As of 31 December 2015

Industry Construction Tradlng Consumer Mortgage Servlce Other Total

At'l January 2015

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Amounts (written off)/recovery

At 31 December 201.5

Individual impairment

Collective impairment

Gross amount of loans
individually determined to be
impaired, before deducting any
individually assessed impairment
allowance

99,s67

123,9241

8,238

80,249

12,7791-

219,331 44,179

(72,950) 107,586

11 ,059 (81,238)

25,033 35,669 30,767 564,795

25,583 /12,794 (18,649) 57,661

208 (61,733)

83,881 77,470 187,440 70,527 50,824 78,463 12,1|,'-8 560,723

16,759

67,1-22

- 83^881

69,394 106,101

8,076 81,339

77,470 187,440

29,398 rt3,278

21,426 25,185

'l9,016

5't ,511

293,946

266,777

70,527 50,824 78,463 12,1',i-8 560,723

99,297 288,729 220,231 81,844 76,309 '1t18,205 914,6't 5

ln thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December 2014

Industry Construction Trading Consumer Mortgage Siervice Other Total

At 1 January 2014

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Net (write off)/recovery

At 3lDecember 2014

Individual impairment

Collective impairment

Gross amount of loans
individually determined to be
impaired, before deducting any
individually assessed impairment
allowance

99,567 80,249

89,037

44,552
(34,022)

62,898

(36,093)

53.444

62,033 30,100

221,790 107,938

(34,492) (s3,859)

21 ,055 32,165

(20,558) 3,s04

24,536

16,503 313,791

14,264 335,397

- (84,3s3)

249,331 44,179 25,09 35,669 30,767 564,795

99,567

56,344

23,905

132,408 188.752

1 16,923 44,179 25,033 35,669 30,767 376,043

99,567 80,249 249,331 44,179 25,033 35,669 30,767 564,795

- 488,933 220,620 - - 709,553
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Loans and ardvances by customer profile may be specified as follovrs:

In thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December
2015 2014

Privately held companies

Individuals

Sole proprietors

Non-commercial institutions

Less allowance for loan impairment

Total loans alld advances to customers

25,604,353

8,758,055

2,943,479

2,885

27,639,460

6,896,958

2,792,391

4,059

37,308,772

(560,:223)

37,332,868

(564,795)

36,748,049 36.768,073

Loans to individuals comprise the following products:

In thousand Almenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December
2t0'|-5 2014

Mortgage loans

Consumer loarrs

Car loans

Other

Total loans and advances to lndividuals (gross)

3,1 37,1 68

2,999,633

811,027

1,910,227

2,503,332

't,426,832

1,048,100
'1 ,918,694

8,758,055 6.896.958

At 31 Decermbet 2015 and 201,4 the estimated fair value of loans and advances to customers
approximaters its carrying value, as stated in Note 32,

Credit, curroncy and interest tate analyses of loans and advances to cusrlomers ate disclosed in Note
35. Informarlion on related parties is disclosed in Note 31.

Maturity anrLlysis of loans and advances to customers are disclosed in Note 34.

l8 Securities available for sale
In thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December

2015 2014

RA state bonds

Non state boncls

Shares of RA c;ompanies

Total securitlers available for sale

346,256

99,306

42,825

94,589

42,825

488,397 't37,414

All debt secudties have Frxed coupons.

The fa:t valure of unquoted available-fot-sale debt securities is measured using a valuation technique,

'vhich uses cwfent market rates to discount future cash flows of the finarncial instruments.

All unquoted available-for-sale equities are recorded at cost since its iflair value cannot be reliably
estimated. There is no market for these investments and the Bank intends to hold it for the long
tefm,
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Available for sale secudties by effective interest rates and maturity date ,:omprise:

In thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December 2015

Maturity

29

%%

As of 31 December
2014

Maturity

RA state bonds

Non state bonds

10.68-14.85 2016-2020

2025

8.26-14.36 2015-2032

4,1 20254.1

Securities available for sale at fut value of A\IID 7,792,893 thousand (201.4: AMD 6,992,595

thousand) 'd/efe pledged to third parties in sale and teputchase agteements for periods not exceeding
six moqths. These have been reclassifred as securities pledged under r(?urchase agreements on the

face of the statement of financial position Q.iote 28).

{9 Property, plant and equipment and intangible asaeta
In thousand Armenian drams TotalLand and Leasehold Computer Vehicles Offlce Intangible

buildings lmprovements equipment equipment assets

COST OR REVALUED AII/|OUNT

AtJanuary 1,2014
Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Adjustment to depreciation from
revaluation

At December 31,2014

Additions

Disposals

At December 31, 2015

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At January 'l,20'|.4
Charge for the year

Disposals

At December 31,2014

Charge for the year

Disposals

At December 31, 2015

2,202,578

83,354

2,022,783
(566,312)

1 17,589

298
(2ee)

312,666 92,693

174,722 42,174
(13,30e) (28,63e)

443,325 107,584

30,185 746
(ro] 

:

3,276,435

33't,479
(42,315)

2,022,783
(566,312)

3,742,403

1,614

117,589 474,079 106,2?9

57 ,779 1 ,'l 18

(7s5)

531,063 107 ,347

206,080 87,907

48,362 8,959

(13,309) (28,347)

473,440 108,330

10,102 26,668

483,542 134,998

338,843 78,543

33,716 8,748
(70)

5,022,070

97,281

(7s5)

5J 1S"556

1,291,059

167,690

(4't,744)

(565,312)

3,f 44,017

513,363

55,1 96

(566,312)

117,589

66,323

'12,709

(1 8)

2,247

128,832

79,014

12,690

241,133

74,238
(7s5)

68,519 372,489

't0,112 34,191

87,291 850,693

7,818 267,881
_ (7e5)

131,079 91,704 314,576 78,631 406,680 95,109 ',t,117,779

CARRYING VALUE

At December 31, 2015

At December 31,2014

AtJanuary 1,2014

3,612,938 25,885 216,487 28,716 76,862 39,889 4,000,777

3,740,156 38,575 232,946 37,710 100,951 21,039 4,17',t,377

1,689,215 5',1 ,266 106,586 4,786 104,482 29,041 1 ,985,376

Revaluation of assefs

The buildinp;s owned by the Bank vrete evaluated by an independent appraiser on 19 December
2014 using a combination of the matket, income and cost rnethods :resulting in a rcvaluation of
AJ\/D 2,022,783 thousand. Managernent have based their estirnate of the fair value of the on the

results of the independent appraisal.

For the failyalue hierarchy of PPE see note 32,3

Fully depreciated items
As at 31 December 2015 Frxed assets and intangible assets includect fully depreciated assets in
amount of y''MD 557,1.53 thousand (2014: AMD 452,670 thousand).
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Resfricflons on title of fixed assefs and intangible assefs

As at 31 Decembet 2015,the Bank does not possess any fixed assets and intangible assets pledged

as security for liabilities or vzhose tide is otherrvise restricted.

Contractu al oommitments

As at 31 Decembet 2015 the Bank had no contractual commitments Q074: either).

20 Repossessed assets
Details of conflscated assets serving as collatetal fot loans issued by the Bank at 31 December are

ptesented b,elow.

In thousand Annenian drams As of31 December As of31 December
2015 2014

30

Real estate

Other

Total reposserssed aesets

4,616,075

24,901

4,627,262

24,901

4,640,976 4,652,'163

At the date of conftscation the collateral is measuted at the lower of the carrying amouot of non
repaid loan Liabilities and the fair value of collateral.

It is the Ban.lk's policy to properly and timely dispose the collateral. The Bank does not principally
use non-c4s.h collaterals fot cartyng out its activity. Assets are rneasufecl at the lower of carrying
amount and fat value less costs to sell.

21 Other assets
In thousand Annenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December

201 5 2014

Debtors and other receivables

Receivables on, cash transfers

Less allowancc for assets impairment

Total other flnanclal assets

Other prepaid taxes

Materials

Other

Total other non-financial assets

Total other aersets

32,,250

61

43,721

32,158

32,,311

(3,040)

75,879

29,271

15,423

1 7,1 95

75,879

5,182

14,626

16,904

32,618 36,712

61,889 112,591

Reconciliatio,n of allowance account for losses on other assets is as follows:
ln thousand Arnenian drams

At January 1, t2014

Charge for the 'year

Amounts writtern off
Recoveries

At December 311,2014

Charge for the lyear

Amounts writte,n off

Recoveries

At December 31,2015

26,523
(28,501)

1,978

8,97;
(8,8s6)

2,960
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22 Arnounts due to financial institutions
In thousand Annenian drams As of 31 DecembEr As of 31 December

2015 2014

31

Repurchase agreements with the CBA

Loans from financial institutions

Deposits from I'inancial institutions

Cunent accounts of financial institutions

Repurchase algreements with banks and other financial institutions

Total amounts due to financial Instltutlons

6,509,610

1,745,069

208,521

203,650

1,853,283

9,808,310

964,348

306,216
't17,820

45,28',1

10,520,133 11,241,975

All deposits from hnancial institutions have fixed intetest rates.

As of 31 De,cernber 2015 the weighted avetage effective interest fates on amounts due to financial

institutions 'were 9.74oh for borovzings in AMD Q01.4: 1.0,86oh), and 5.56 % for loans in USD,

EUR and odhet fteely convettible currencies (201.4: 5.02%).

The Bank J:Las not had any defaults of pdncipal,

liabilities dur:ing the period (2014: nil).

23 Amounts due to customers
In thousand Armenian drams

interest ot other breaches vrith resoect to its

As of 31 Decenrber As of31 December
2015 2014

Corporate cus;tomers

CurrenUsettlernent accou nts

Time deposits

Retall customers
CunenVdemand accounts

Time deposits

Total amountsi due to customers

7,399,718

996,393

6,856,905

578,830

8,396,1 11

3,628,329

21,096,447

7,435,735

3,027,942

18,800,791

24,724,776 21,828,733

33,120,887 29,264,468

As at 31 Drecember 2015 included in amounts due to customers are deposits amounting to AMD
864,740 thousand (2014: AMD 208,620 thousand) held as security against loans to customefs,

Ietters of credit issued, guarantees issued and othet transaction relateil contingent obligations. The

fair value ol'those deposits apptoximates the carqring amount,

Concentrathn of customers' cLtrrent accounts and deposits

As at 31 December 2075 the Bank has two groups of related custonlers Q01.4: two), urhose loan

balances exceed 100/o of equity.The gross value of these loans as at31, Decembet 2015 amounts to

AMD 10,1013,405 thousand Q0l4: AMD 8,489,030 thousand),

As of 31 December 2015 the weighted average effective intetest rates on amounts due to customers

was 72,9oh:For bortowings in AMD (201.4: 72.2"h) and 8.4oh for borowings in USD, EUR and

other fteely,:onvertible cuttencies Q014: 8.4"/o).
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24 Debt securities issued
Debt secudties in the amount of 10,000 thousand EUR were issued

rate of 5.5oh and matutity of up to 5 years.

jn 2014. at an annual interest

The securities issued in 2014 have been fully repaid and new subordinated interest bonds have been

issued (See lf{ote 26).

The Bank's issued intelest-bearing bonds are not intended for circulation in secondary market,

25 Other borrowings
In thousand Annenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December

201 5 2014

32

Loans from Fl,A Government

Total other borrowings

493,680 740.557

493,680 740,557

Loans from the RA Govemrnent include loans teceived within the ftilmes of "Small and Medium

Loaning pro,gram" and "Economy stabilization project" of the German Armenian fund.

The weightr:d average effective interest r:;te of the attracted loan was 9.2o/o at 31 Decembet 201.5

(201,4:9.20h),

The Bank l:ras not had any defaults of principal,

liabilities dur:ing the period (2014: nil).

26 Subordinate debts
In thousand Annenian drams

interest or other 'breaches urith resoect to its

As of 31 December As of31 December
?015 2014

Subordinate debt from the CBA

Bonds issued

Total other bonrowlngs

3,106,286

5,306,737

3,613,413

8,413,023 3,613,41 3

The debt p,.rovided by the CBA is subordinated debt issued n 201,7 in the amount of AMD
3,600,000 *r,ousand at 8o/o pet annum vrith contractual matudty up to 3.t December 2016,

During 2011i 10,000 subotdinated coupon bonds have been issued 'riith nominal value of Euto
1000, 5,5%o of interest rate and maturity of 5,1-5,9 years.

27 Other llabilities
ln thousand,Annenian drams As of 3'l Decenrber

201 5
As of31 December

2014

Due to personnel

Accounts payables

Total other financial liabilities

Tax payable, ollher than income tax

Grants related to assets

Other

Total other non financial liabilities

Total other llzr bllities

66,602

98,583

75,304

26,560

165,185

81,704

53,928

2,295

101,864

'107,065

56,002

23,157

137,927 't86,224

303,1',l2 288,088
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Grants relate'd fo assefs

In thqusand Arnenian drams

33

201 5 2014

At January 1

Recognition of lincome (Note 9)

At December lll

56,002

(2,1741

58,076

(2,O74)

53,928

28 Se,curities pledged
ln thousand Annenian drams

under repurchase agreements
Asset Liability

As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31

December December December December
2015 2014 2015 2014

Investments available for sale (Note 15,18, 22)

Total securitigs pledged under repurchase
agreem6nts

8,587,674 10,098,647 8,362,893 9,853,591

8,587,674 10,098,647 8,362,893 9,853,591

The pledgecl securities are Frnancial assets pledged under repurchase aEreernents with other banks,

with the right to sell or re-pledge by the counterparty.

29 Equlty
As at 31 De,cernber 2015 the Bank's registered and paid-in chartet capital was AMD 14,400,000

thousand.

The respectj.,re participants as at 31 December 2075 and 2014 may be sprecified as follouzs:

In thousand Annenian drams 
paid-in charter capltal % of totar paid-rn capital

"ZakNefteGazl!'troy Prometey' OJSC

Vazgen Gevorglyan

"Prometey Citlt'119

6,642,000

561,600

7,196,400

46.125

3.9

49.975

14,400,000

During 2011i the Bank has not paid dividends. In 201,4 dividends paid by the Bank fot 201.3 results

arnounted to AMD 895,000 thousand.

Distributablc) among participants reserves equal the amount of rertained earnings, detetmined

according to the Armenian legislation. Non-distributable reserves are rc,presented by a reserve fund,

which is ct<:ated as required by the statutory tegulations, in respect of general banking tisks,

including future losses and other unforeseen risks ot contingencies. The reserve has been created in

accofdance rvith the Bank's statutes that provide for the cfeation of a leserve for these pulposes of
not less thao 5 o/o of the Bank's charter capital teported in statutory books.

30 Grontingent llabilities and commitments
Tax and legia'l mafters
The taxatiorr system in Armenia is telatively new and is chatacterised by frequent changes in

legislation, ctfficialpronouncements and coutt decisions, which ate sornetirnes uncleat, contradictory

and subject to varying interpretation. Taxes are subject to review and investigation by tax authorities,

which have the authority to impose fines and penalties. Iq the event of a breach of tax legislation, no



"Prometey Bank" Limited Liability Company
Financial statements
31 December i!015

liabilities for: additional taxes, frnes or penalties may be imposed by tax authodties once three yeats

have elapsecl from the date of the breach.

These cifcumstances may cteate tax risks in Armenia that ate mote sigoificant than in othet

countries. Illanagement believes that it has provided adequately fot' tax liabilities based on its
interpretatio,res of applicable Armenian tax legislation, ofltcial pronouncements and court decisions.

However, the intelpretations of the relevant authodties could diffet ancl the effect on these Ftnancial

statements, if the authorities vrere successful in enfotcing their interpretations, could be signifrcant.

Managemenl: believes that the Bank has complied viith all regulations and has cornpletely settled all

its tax liabilities.

Managernent believes that the Bank has complied vzith all regulations and has completely settled all

its tax liabilities.

Managerneot also believes that the ultimate liability, tf any, arising from legal actions and complaints

taken against the Bank, vzill not have a material advetse impact on the financial condition ot tesults

of future op,r:rations of the Bank,

Loan comm'itiment, guarantee and other financial facilities

In the noflrral cowse of business, the Bank is a party to financial instrurnents with off-balance sheet

dsk in ordel to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, inl'olving varying degrees of
credit risk, a,rre not reflected in the statement of ftnancial position.

As of 31 Derernber the nominal or contract amounts were:

In thousand Anrenian drams As of 31 December As of 31 December
2015 2014

Undrawn loan r;ommitments

Guarantees

Total commitrnents and contingent llabllitles

670,412

861,757

828,870

1 18,597

1,532,169 947,467

The maximurm exposure to credit risk of Loan commitrnents, guatantee and other financial facilities

is best represented by the total amount of these commitments and contingent liabilities'

Operating lense commitments - Bank as a /essee

In the norrnal course of business the Bank enters into commercial lease agreements for office

equipment, r:entral ofFrce and branch facilities.

The future aggreg te minimum lease payrnents under non-cancellable operating leases ate as follows:

ln thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December As of 3 l December
2015 2014

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 yerar and not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Total operating lease commltments

94,950

175,001

30,450

103,384

219,890

43,050

300,401 366,324

Capital eommitments
Inforrnation on capital commitrnents is disclosed in Notes 19.
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lnsurance

The insurance industry in fumenia is in a developing state and many fo:rms of insurance protection
common in othet parts of the wotld are oot yet genetally available. The Bank does not have firll
coverage for business intetruption, or for third party liabiJity in respect of ptoperty or environmental

damage arising from accidents on Bank property or relating to Bank operations. Until the Bank

obtains adequate insufance coverage, there is a dsk that the loss or desffuction of certain assets

could have ra matedal adverse effect on the Bank's operations and financial position.

31 Transactions with related parties
In accofdance vdth IAS 24 Related Paty Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one

party has ahrility to conttol the other patLy ot exercise significant influence ovet the other pary in
making financial of operational decisions. For the purpose of the presetrt financial statements,

related parti.es include pafticipants, mernbers of Bank's Managernent as well as other persons and

enterprises :related with and controlled by them tespectively.

The ultimate panicipant of the Bank is Vazgen Gevorgyan, who is telated with other shateholdets

of the Bank.

A nurnber of banking transactions are entered into udth related parties in the normal coutse of
business, Tlrese include loans, deposits and othet transactions. These ttansactions were caffied out

on cornrnercial tetms and at market rates.

The volumes of related pafiy ftansactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and related expense

and income for the year arc as follows;

In thousand Armenian drams 20'15 2014
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Key
management

Participants and personnel and
parties related parties related

with them with them

Key
Participants management
and parties personnel and
related with oarties related

them with them

STATEM ENT' OF FI N AN C I AL PO S ITIO N

Loans and a<lvances fo customers
Loans outstarrding at January 1

Loans issued during the year

Loan repayments during the year

347,555

261,675

(457,5s5)

921,398

(884,1 82)

271,926
(81,743)

285,301

745,449
(704,05s)

326.695 157,372

Loans outstanding at December 31

Less: allowance for loan impairment

Loans outstanding at December 31

Amounts due to customars

Deposlts at January 1

Deposits received during the year

Deposits repaid during the year

Deposits at [tecember 31

lnterest income on loans

lmpairment (charge)/reversal

Interest expense on deposits

Commission income

Other income

Other operating 6xpenses

363,911 347,555

(2,s47) (3,476)

150,613 361,364 344,079 323,428

151 ,675
(1,062)

326,695

(3,267)

1,127,954

1,910,380

(1,887,697)

986,060 527,'166

4,290,276 2,549,432

(4,24s,0421 (1,948,644)

779,438

2,984,725

(2,778,103)

1 ,150,537 1,031,294 1,127,954 986,060

Statement of profit or ross and other comprehensive income
25,165

2,4'14

(100,350)

1,037

'i-,738

(1,6e2)

34,190

720

(81,697)

1,730

1,711

(2,1621

z',t,235

(1,902)

(70,620)

699

2,262

(470)

31,065

(414)

(7s,se5)

1,039

1,255

Izool
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CompensatiLon of key rnanagement personnel v/as comprised of the following:

In thousand Armenian drams 20'15

36

2014

Salaries and other bonuses

Total key management compensation

261,562

264,462 393,487

The loans issued to parties related with the Bank ate repayable over 1-15 years and have effective

interes t rates o f 1.0.1, 0 -26.830/o Q01. 4: 5.83 -24.3 6%).

32 Fiair value measurement
The Bank's rnanagement determines the policies and ptocedures for both recurring fair value

rneasufernent, such as unquoted trading and available-for-sale securities, unquoted dedvatives and

for non-recrurring measurement, such as assets held for sale.

External valluers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties.

Financial and non-Frnancial assets and liabilities measwed atfa].r.value in the statement of frnancial

positfoq ar€ ptesented below This hierarchy gtoups Fnancial and non-fnancial assets and liabilities

i4to three levels based on the significance of inputs used in measudng the fair value of the financial

assets and Uabilities. The fait value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadlusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included vdthin Level 1 that arc observable for the asset

and liabiJity,, either ditectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable matket data (unobservable

inputs).

32.1 Filnancial instruments that are not measured at fair value
The table b,elow presents the fair value of hnancial assets and liabilities not fneasured at their fait

value in the statement of firrancial position and analyses them by the level in the fair value hierarchy

into which teach fair value measurement is categorised.

ln thousand /\rmenian drams As of 31 December 2015

Total
Total fair carrying

Level 3 values amountLevel 1 Level 2

FINANCIAL A,SSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due from other financial
institutions

Loans and adruances to customers

Other assets

- 14,559,'127

- 8,923,705

- 36,748,049

- 29,271

14,559,',t27 14,559,127

8,923,705 8,923,705

36,748,049 36,748,049

29,271 29,27',1

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amounts due to financial institutions

Amounts due to customers

Subordinated debts

Other borrowings

Other liabilities

- 10,520,133

- 33,120,887

- 8,413,023

- 493,680

- 165,185

- 10,520,133

- 33,120,887

- 8,413,023

- 493,680

- 165,185

't 0,520,133

33,1 20,887

8,413,023

493,680

165,'t 85
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ln thousand A,rmenian drams
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As of 31 December 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Total
Total fair carrying

values amount

FINANCIAL AISSETS

Cash and cashr equivalents

Amounts due from financial
institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amounts due to financial institutions

Amounts due to customers

lssued debt securities

Subordinated <lebt

Other borrowings

Other liabilities

- 15,895,791

- 5,805,918

- 36,768,073

- 75,879

- 11,241,975

- 29,264,468
- 5,908,602

- 3,613,413

- 740,557

- 101 ,864

15,895,791

5,805,918

36,768,073

75,879

1't,241,975

29,264,468
5,908,602

3,613,413

740,557

10'l ,864

15,895,791

5,805,918

36,768,073

75,879

11,241,975

29,264,468
5,908,602

3,613,413

740,557

101 ,864

Amounts due from and to financial institutions

For assets and liabil-ities maturing within one rnonth, the catrying amount approximates fair value

due to the r,elatively shoft-tefm maturity of these financial instruments. Fot the assets and liabilities

maturing in ovet one montl, the fair value was estimated as the Present value of estirnated futute

cash flows discounted at the apptopriate yeat-end market rates, which are mainly the same as

curtent intefest fates.

Loans and advances fo cusfomers

The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally their carrying amount. The estimated fut
value of f,rxed interest rate instruments is based on estimated futwe cash flows expected to be

received disicounted at cuffent interest rates fot new instfuments with similar credit dsk and

remaining rnaturity. Discount fates used depend on credit dsk of the countelparty and ranged from

7oh to 24o/o Per annum (201'4:7.5"h to 22o/o per annum).

The fut value of the impaired loans is calculated based on expected cash flows from the sale of
collateral. The value of collateral is based on appraisals performed by independent, professionally-

qualified properry valuers.

Due to financial institutions and customers

The fatr value of deposits from Furancial institutions and customers is estirnated using discounted

cash flow techniques, applyng the rates that are offered for deposits of similar rnaturities and tetms,

The fak value of deposits payable on demand is the amount payable at the teporting date.

/ssued secu rities, othe r borrowings

The fair value of borrowings with fixed and unquoted intetest tates is set based on the calculation of
future cash flows, which are discounted applying the rates that are offeted nevz debt instruments of

similar rnaftrtities and terms.
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32.2 Financlal lnstruments that are
ln thousand rrrmenian drams

measured at fair value
As of 31 December 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

38

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available for siale investments

Securities pledged under repurchase
agreements

Total

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trading financial liabilities

Total

NET FAIR VAI-UE

99,306 346,256

- 8,587,674

445,562

8,587,674

99,306 8,933,930

794,f 81

9,033,236

794,781

794,781794,781

99,306 8,139,149 7,892,199

ln thousand Armenian drams As of31 December2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FINANCIAL AI}SETS

Securities available for sale

Securities pledlged under repurchase
agreements

Derivative fina ncial liabilities

Total

FINANCIAL LI,ABILITIES

Trading financial liabilities

Total

NET FAIR VAI-UE

94,589

- 10,098,647

27,026

94,589

10,098,647

27,026

94,589 10,125,673

3,106,052

3,106,052 3,1 06,052

94,589 7,019,621 7,114,210

There have been no transfers between levels 1 and 2 in the reporting period.

The methocls and valuation techniques used for the pu{pose of measuring fair value ate unchanged

compared to the previous reporting pedod.

Listed equ i$/ investme nts.

Usted bonds have been issued by publicly traded cornpanies in Russia,

10,220,262

3,106,052

U n I i ste d eq Lt ity i nv estme nts.

The fair valrue of Bank's investment in "AtCa" and "ACRA" unlisted

reliably measuted and is therefore excluded from this disclosure.

information about this equity investment.

fivestments canflot be

to note 18 fot further

Derivatives

Where derivatives are traded either on exchanges or liquid over-the-counter market the Bank uses

the closing price at the teporting date.

Normally, the detivatives entered into by the Bank are not ttaded in active markets. The fair values

of these cointracts are estimated using valuation techniques that maximises the use of observable

matket inpu,ts, eg. rnarket exchange fates. Most derivatives entered into by the Bank ate included in

Level2.
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32,3 F:rir value measurement of non-financial assets and liabllities

In thousand Armenian drams
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As of 31 December 2015

Level 'l Level 2 Level 3 Total

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Property plant and equipment

Land and builclings

Total

3,744,017 3,744,017

- 3,744,0'17 3,744,017

ln thousand Armenian drams As of 31 December 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Property plant and equipment

Land and builclings

Total

3,742,403 3,742,403

- 3,742,403 3,742,403

Fair value ftteasurements in Level 3

The Bank's non financial assets and liabilities classified in Level 3 uses valuation techniques based

on significarrt inputs that are not based on observable matket data. The financial assets and frnancial

liabilitjes within this level can be reconciled from beginning to eoding balance as follows:

ln thousand l\rmenian drams Property plant equlpment Total

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Balance as at 1 January 2014

Adjustment to depreciation due to revaluation

Gains recognised in other comprehensive
income

Purchases

Balance as at 31 December, 2014

Purchases

Balance a8 at 31 December, 2015

2,202,578
(566,312)

2,022,783

83,354

2,202.578
(566,312)

2,022,783

83,354

3,742,403

1,614

3,742,403

1,6',i-4

3,744,017 3,744,017

Fair value of the Bank's main propefty assets is estimated based on appraisals petformed by

independent, professionally-qualified ptopetty valuets. The signiFrcant inputs and assumptions are

developed in close consultation with management. The valuation Ptocesses and fatt value changes

are reviewed by the board of directors and audit committee at each teporting date.

The land and building owned by the Bank were evaluated by an independent apptaiset on 19

December 11014 using a combination of the market, income and cost methods'

33 Offsetting of financial assets and financlal liabllities
In the orclinary corrse of business, the Bank perfotms different opetations with financial

instruments which may be presented in net amounts v/hen thete is a legally enforceable right to set

off the recc,gnised amounts and there is an intention to setde on a net basis, or realise the asset and

settle the lia.bilitv sirnultaneously.
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The table be,low presents financial assets and financial liabilities that ate offset in the statement of
lurancial position ot are subject to an enfotceable master netting arrangernent or similar agreement
that covefs siimilat f,tnancial instruments, irtespective of whether they are offset in the statement of
fitarcial position.

In thousand A,rmenian drams As of December 31,2015
Related amounts, which were not offset in the statement of financial

position

Gross assets Gross liabirities -"i:"T#i:T 
,..[,'ffi:?,'J 

Net

FINANCIAL AIBSETS

Amounts due from otherfinancial 5,351,696
institutions (note'15)

. 5,351,696 5,s36,265 (184,s69)

Gross Gross assets Net amounts Financial Net
liabilities offset presented instruments

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amounts due to financial 8,362,893
institutions (No,te 28)

. 8,362,893 8,587,674 (224,7811

ln thousand A,rmenian drams As of December 31,2014
Related amounts, whlch were not offset in the statement of financial

position

Gross assets Gross liabilities Net amounts Financial Net
offset presented instruments

FINANCIAL AISSETS

Amounts due from other financial 3,706,100
inetitutions (note 15)

- 3,706,100 4,039,019 (332,919)

Gross Gross assets Net amounts Financial Net
liabilities offset presented instruments

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amounts due to financial 9,853,591
institutions (Note 28)

- 9,853,591 10,098,647 (245,056)

The gross arnounts of Frnancial assets and hnancial liabilities and their net amounts as presented in
the statements of financial position and disclosed in the above tables are rneasrred in the statement

of financial position on the following basis:

o repurchase agreements, securities lending and borrowing are measured at amortised cost

40
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34 Maturity analysis of assets and llabillties
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities
expected to be recovered or setded. See Note 35.3 for
rePayment obligations.

In thousand Armenian drams

41

axa,lyzed according to when they are

the Bank's contractual undiscounted

2015

Demand and From
loss than 1 1 to 3

month months

From Subtotal
3 to 1t2 less than

months 12 months

From
1 to 5 More than
years 5 years

Subtotal
over 12
months Total

'14,569,127

6,714,218

3,056,080

794,781

29,271

't,231,845

1 ,815,674
95,435

142,063

252,959

6,853,685

4,197

88,042

14,559,127

8,199,022

11,725,439

99,632

1,024,886

29,271

g47,12;

19,237,972

250,050

6,509,626

377,56;

5,784,638

138,705

1,063,162

724,68;

25,022,610

388,755

7,562,788

14,559,',t27

8,923,705

36,748,049

488,387

8,587,674

29,271

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due from otherfinancial
institutions

Loans and advgnces to customers

lnvestments available for sale

Securities pledged under
repurchase agreements

Other assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts due to flnancial
institutions

Trading financlal liabilities

Amounts due to customers

Subordinate debts

Other borrowings

Other liabilities

Net position

Accumulated gap

215,153,477

9,955,244

794,781

12,714,207

278,747

91,964

3,285,017

7,775

1,563,670

919,837

73,22',1

7,198,883

'l97,756

1 1,715,058

1,927,539

247,633-

35,637,377

10,160,775

794,781

25,992,935

3,126,123

247,633

165,185

26,344t769

165,376

7,126,984

5,286,900

246,047

7,354,067

1 93,982

33,698,836

359,358

7,127,952

5,288,900

246,047-

20,678,579

69,336,213

10,520,'t33

794,781

33,120,887

8,413,023

493,680

165,185

1q8r4524

968

i13,834,943 2,564,503 14,087,986 40,187,432 12,825,307 194,950 13,020,257 53,507,689

1,318,534 720,514 (6,889,103) (4,850,055) 13,519,462 7,159,117

1,318,534 2,039,048 (4,850,055) 8,669,407 1s,8245,,4
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2014

Demand and From
less than 1 1 to 3

month months

From Subtotal
3 to 12 less than

months '12 months

Subtotal
More than over 12

5 years months

From
1to5
years Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts clue from other financial
institutionsi

Derivative financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Investments available for sale

Securities pledged under
repurchase agreements

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Amounts clue to financial
institutions

Trading financial liabilities

Amounts clue to customers

Debt securities issued

Subordinate debt

Other borrowings

Other liabilities

Net position

Accumularted gap

15,895,791

3,683,917 949,940

27,026

579,821 1,696,415

- 3,752

3,106,052 255,419
75,879

:r3,368,486 2,905,526 8,840,223

15,895,791

4,985,064 500,000

27,026

9,926,115 19,829J82
3,752

4,200,608 5,746,656

75,879

320,854 820,854

7,1112,776 26,841,958

133,662 133,662

1151 ,383 5,898,039

7,618,675 33,694,513

351,207

7,649,879

839,1 37

15,895,791

5,805,918

27,026

36,768,073

137,414

10,098,647

75,879

68,808,74835,114,235 26,075,838

3,982

5,338,687

5,774,700

3,600,000

492,093

't5.209,462

3,982 11,241,975

- 3,106,052

5,338,687 29,264,468

5,774,700 5,908,602

3,600,000 3,6,|3,413

492,093 740,557

- 101 ,864

9,978,485

3,106,052

10,363,916

35,893

't3,413

2,427

101 ,864

959,754

't,284,278

299,754 11,237,993

- 3,106,052

12,277,587 23,925,781

98,009 133,902

- 13,413

246,037 248,464

- 101,864

12,921 ,387 38,767,469if3,602,050 2,244,032 15,209,462 53,976,931

(233,564) 661,494 (4,081,164) (3,6s3,2s4) 10,866,376 7,618,675 18,485,051 14,831,817

(233,564) 427,930 (3,653,234) 7 ,213,142 14,831 ,817

35 Riisk management
The Bank's activities expose it to a vaiety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis,

evaluation, ,rcceptance and management of some degree of dsk or cornbination of dsks.

Risk is rnanaged through a process of ongoing identiftcation, measurement and monitoring, subject

to risk limits and othet conftols, This process of risk management is critjcal to the Bank's continuing

ptoFrtability. The Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity dsk and market risk, the latter being

subdivided into trading and non-trading dsks, It is also subject to operating dsks. The independent

risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment, technology

and industq', They are monitored through the Bank's strategic planning process.

Risk managreme nt stru ctu re

The Board of the Bank and the Managernent Board ate ultimately res;ponsible for identifying and

controlling risks; however, there are separate independent bodies responsible fot managing and

monitoring :risks.

Board of the Bank
The Board of the Bank is responsible for the overall risk management approach and fot approving

the risk strategies and principles.

Management Board
The Managr3rnent Board is responsible for implernentation, realtzadon and control of processes,

which are connected with dsk management.
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Risk ControtUing Unit

The Risk Contolling Unit is responsible fot
and limits racross the Bank. This unit also

measurefnerrt and teporting systems.

monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies

ensures the complete capture of the risks in risk

lntemal aud'it

Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually try the internal audit function,
which exanunes both the adequacy of the procedures and the Bank's compliance with the

procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all assessments vrith fnanagement, and reports its

Frndings andl recomrnendations to the Board of the Bank and the Management Board.

Risk measutement and repofting sysfems
The Bank's pisks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in

normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based

on statistica.l models. The models make use of probabilities derived ftom historical experience,

adjusted to reflect the economic environrnent. The Bank also runs woirst case scenarios that would

arise in the r:vent that extreme events rvhich ate unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitodng and controlling risks is primarily perfotmed based on linLits established by the Bank.

These lirnits reflect the business strategy and market envitonment of the Bank as well as the level of
risk that ther Bank is willing to accept, vzith additional emphasis on selected industries. In addition

the Bank monitors and measures the overall risk bearing capacity in telation to the aggregate risk
exposure across all risks types and activities,

Information compiled ftom all the businesses is examined and processed in ordet to analyse, control

and identift early dsks, This information is presented and explained to the Board of the Bank and

the Managerment Board. The report includes agrcg te credit exposue, hold lirnit exceptions,

liquidity ratios and dsk profrle changes. On a rnorithly basis detailed reporting of industry, customer

and geograp,hic risks takes place by maturiry. The Management receives a comptehensive risk report

once a quafter which is designed to provide all the necessary information to assess and conclude on

the dsks of the Bank.

A daily brieling is given to the members of the Management Board, which includes Bank normative,

current balance of the Bank, daily change in income and expenses and changes in off-balance sheet

articles.

Excesslye ri sk co n ce ntrat i o n

Concentrations arise when a nurnber of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or

actjvities in the same geographic region, or have similar ecooomic feaLtures that would cause thei-t

ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in econornic, political or

other condrttions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank's petformance to

developmer:rts affecting a particular industry or geogaphical location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of dsks, the Bank's policies and procedures include

speciFrc guiclelines to focus on maintaining a diversified pottfolio. Identifred concenttations of credit

dsks are controlled and rnanaged accordingly.

35.1 Gredit risk
The Bank takes on exposure to credit dsk, which is the risk that a counterParty will cause a financial

loss for the Bank by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit tisk is thr: most important risk for the

Bank's business; fnanagement therefote carefully rnanages its exposure to credit risk. Credtt
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exPosures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances, and investment

activities that bring debt securities and other bills into the Bank's asset portfolio. There is also credit
risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan conrmitments. The credit risk
management and control are centralfsed in credit dsk manageflrent team of Bank's fusk
Management Department and reported to the Board of the Bank and Managernent Board.

The catrying amounts of the Bank's financial assets best represent the :maximum exposure to credit
risk telated to them, without taking account of any collatetal held or other credit enhancements.

35.{.'l Risik concentrations
Geographical secfors
The following table breaks down the Bank's main credit exposure at their carqng amounts, as

categonzed by geographical region as of31 Decernbet,

In thousand Atmenian drams
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Armenia
Non-OECD

countries
OEGD

countries Total

Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due {iom other financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Investments available for sale

Securities pledlged under repurchase
agreements

Other assets

As at 31 December 2015

Asat31 December2014

'14,017,267

8,561,834

36,743,828

389,081

8,587,674

29,271

200,862

361,871

4,221

99,306

340,998 '14,559,127

8,923,705

36,748,049

488,387

8,587,674

29,271

68,328,955 666,260 340,998 69,336,213

67,729,495 729,716 349,537 68,808,748

Assets have been classified based on the country in which the counterpatty is located.

35.1.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies
The Bank structufes the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one boffower, or gtoups of borrowers, and to geogaphical and indusry
segments.

Such risks are rnonitoted on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review,

when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sectot and by

country ate approved quartedy by the Board of the Bank.

The exposufe to any one botrowet includrng banks and financial orgarizaions is further restricted

by sub-limits covedng on- and off-balance sheet exposutes, and daily delivery risk lirnits in relation
to tading iterns such as forward foteign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are

monitored claily.

Exposure to credit dsk is also rnanaged through regular analysis of the abiJity of borowets and

potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these

lending limits where appropriate.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below,

Collateral
The Bank employs a taage of policies and practices to mitigate credit d.sk. It is common practice to

take collateral for extended funs. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptabiJity of specific
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classes of crcllateral or credit dsk mitigation. The princrpal collatetal types for loans and advances

itei

o Mortgages over residential properties;
o Charges over business assets such as prernises, other fixed assets, inventory;
o Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

Longer-temr finance and lending to corporate entities are generally securedl revolving individual
credit facilities are genetally unsecuted. In addition, in ordet to rninimise the credit loss the Bank will
seek additional collateral from the countefparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the

relevant ind:ividual loans and advances.

Collateral held as security for financial assets othet than loans and advances is determined by the

nature of the instrurnent. Debt secudties, treasury and other eligible bilfti are geoetally unsecuted.

45

The analysis of the loan potfolio by collateral is tepresented as follovzs:

ln thousand Armenian drams 2015 2014

Loans collaterialized by real estate

Loans collaterirlized by materials

Loans collateralized by movable property

Loans collateralized by cash

Loans collateralized by guarantees

Loans collateralized by gold

Loans collateralized by RA state bonds

Loans collateralized by shares of other companies

Loans collaterglized by deposits

Other collateral

Total loans and advances to customers (gross)

25,640,491

5,300,299

2,260,867

1,63|i,633

1,0311,157

46|i,256

490,810

67,1 09

277,857

134,293

27,335,2't7

4,407,037

1,731,798

1,840,349

780,533

468,798

439,671

208,620

120,845

37,301,772 37,332,868

The arnounts presented in the table above are carytng values of the l,oafis, ?od do not necessarily

fepresent the fair value of the collatetals. Estirnates of matket values of collatetals are based on
valuation of the collatetal at the date when loans wete provided. Generally they are not updated

unless loans are assessed as individually impaired.

C re d it- re I ato d c o m m itm e nts

The primary purpose of these iflstruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as

required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary

and cornrnercial letters of credit - which are viritten undertakings try the Bank on behalf of a

customef authorising a third pafty to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated arnount under

specific terrns and conditions - are collateralised by the undetlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefore c rry less risk than a direct loan.

Commitments to extend credit teptesent unused potions of authorisations to extend ctedit in the

form of loans. In this case, the possible amount of loss, that the Bank may bear, equals to the

unused portions of loans.

However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitrnents, as most

commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customets maintaining specihc ctedit standatds.
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The Bank nronitots the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments

genefally have a gteatet degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitrnents.

35.'1.3 lmpairment and provisioning policles
The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment includ,e vzhether any payments of
principal or: interest are overdue or there ate ^ry known difirculties in the cash flovzs of
counterparties, credit rating downgrades, or infringement of the odgintl terns of the contract. The
Bank addresrses irnpairment assessment into areas: individually assessecl allowances and collectively

assessed allo'wances.

lndividually ossessed allowances

The Bank dr:tetmines the allowances appropriate for each individually si.guificant loan or advance on

an individual basis. Items considered when determining allowance amounts include the sustainabiJity

of the counterparty's business plan, its abiJity to irnprove perfotmance once a Frnancial difhculty has

arisen, projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should banlruptcy ensue, the availability

of other frnancial support and the tealizable value of collatetal, and the timing of the expected cash

flows. The impaitment losses are evaluated at each teporting date, unless unfoteseen cifcumstances

require mofr: cateful attention.

Col lectiv e ly,assessed al I ow ance s

Allowances ate assessed collectively fot losses on loans and advances that afe not signifrcant

(including credit catds, residential mortgages and unsecured consumer loans) aqd fot individually

signiflcant loans and advances where there is not yet objective eviden,ce of individual impairment.

Allowances are evaluated on each teporting date with each potfolio receiving a separate review.

The collectise assessment takes account of impairment that is likely to be present in the Portfolio
even though there is not yet objective evidence of the impairment jur an individual assessment.

Impairment losses are estirnated by taking into consideration of the foll,cwing information: historical

losses on th,e portfolio, current economic conditions, the approxrmate delay between the dme a loss

is likely to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requiring an individually assessed

impairment allowance, and expected receipts and tecoveries once impair:ed'

Financial guarantees and letters of credit are assessed and provision rnade in a similar manner as fot
loans.

Loans and advances neither past due or impaired
The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for loans and advances neifhet past due or
impaired, based on the histodcal counteqpatty default rates.

ln thousand Armenian drams 2015 2014
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Loans and adl'ances to customers

Manufacturing

Trade

Consumer

Mortgage

Service

Other

0.1%

0.1o/o

1.3Yo

0.1%

1,0o/o

0.10

0.20/o

0.8%

0.1%

0j%
2.2%
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As of 31 De'cembet 2015 and 2014 the Bank has not had any losses on other financial assets beating
credit risk.

Past due but' not impaired loans
Past due loans and advances include those that are only past due by a few days. The majodty of the
past due loans are not considered to be impaired.

Analysis of past due loans by age and by class is provided below.

In thousand Annenian drams 2015

Loans and advances to customers

Manufacturing

Constructirrn

Trade

Consumer

Mortgage

Service

Other

Total

31 to 60 61 to 90 More than

12,670 - 14,130 20,768 47,558
- 389,858 389,858

30,501 251,414 . 319,416 60l ,331
11,901 18,257 23,710 56,654 110,522

. 10,379 15,075 27,'148 52,602
-- 29,354 26,943 1,426,847 1,482,144

3,269 3,269

55,072 308,404 79,858 
'-;t660- 

2,687,294:

In thousand Amrenian drams 2014
Less than 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 More than

Loans and advances to customers

Manufacturing

Constructicrn

Trade

Consumer

Mortgage

Service

Other

Total

- 23,653 23,653

280,824 280,824
57,812 - 3,267 198,378 259,457
40,866 15,024 11,589 60,412 127,891
22,456 12,615 35,071

- 6,276 6,276
846 - 846

121,980 s7,568 14,856 
-.@ 

rc4,oja

35.2 Market risk
Matket dsk is the risk that the fair value ot future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to chang;es in market variables such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Bank
classifies exPosrres to matket risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios, The market risk for
the trading prcrtfolio is managed and moqitored based on a VaR methodology which reflects the
interdependency between dsk variables. Non-trading positions are managed and monitored using
othet sensitivity analyses. Except fot the concentrations vdthin foreign currency, the Bank has no
significant concentfation of market risk.

35.2.1 Market risk - Non-trading
lnterest rate isk
Interest tate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates rvill affect future cash flows
or the fair values of financial instruments. The Board of the Bank has established limits on the
interest rate gaPS for stipulated periods. Positions are monitored on a dail'r basis.
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The folloviitrg table demonstrates the sensitivity
with all othet vatiables held constant, of the
comprehensive income.

to a feasonable possilble change in interest rates,

Bank's staternent o[ profit or loss and other

48

The sensitivity of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is the effect of
the assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the floating
12te no\-tta<ling financial assets and frnancial liabilitres held at 31 December 2075. The sensitivity of
equity is cak:ulated by revaluating fixed rate available-for-sale firrancial assets at 31 December 201,5
for the effer:ts of the assumed changes in interest rates. The sensitivity of equity is analysed by
maturity of the asset of swap. The total sensitivity of equity is based on the assumption that there
arc parallel srhifts in the yield curve, while the analysis by matudty displays the sensitivrry ro non-
patallel chan,ges.

In thousand Annenian drams 2015

Sensitivity of equity
Sensltivity

of net
lnterest
income

Change
in basls
points

More
than 5
years

Upto6
mgnths

6 month$ 1 year to
tolyear Syears Total

AMD

EUR

AMD

EUR

+j
+10

(1)

(10)

(160)

,11

(140,650) (37,368) ('t78,1781

. 9,931 9,931

144,812 39,180 184,153

- (9,931) (9,931)

In thousand Amrenian drams 2014

Sensitivity of equity
Change
in basis
points

Sensitivity of
net interest

income
Upto6
months

6 months 1 year to
tolyear 5yeErs Total

(1,753) (1,s32)_ ('t47,"ru,] ,,u1750j 
"mdi.rrj

More than
5 years

AMD

EUR

AMD

EUR

+1

+10

(1)

(1 0)

1,753 1 ,537 147 ,78't 157,970

(s,45e)

309,041

(s,45e)

Currency risk

Curency risli: is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foteign exchange rates. The Board of the Bank has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are
monitored on a daily basis, The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Bank had
signiFrcant exlPosure at 31 December 201.5 on its non-ffading monetary assets and liabilities and its
fofecast cash flows. The analysis calculated the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the
cuffency rate against the Armenian dram, with all other vadables held constant on the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (due to the fair value of cufrency sensitive non-
trading monetar-y assets and liabiJities). A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net
teduction in statement of ptofit of loss and other comprehensive incorne or equity, whjle a positive
amount reflects a net potential increase.
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ln thousand Armenian drams 2015 2014

0urrency

Change in
currency rate in Effect on proflt

olo before tax

Change in
currency rate in Effect on prolit before

% tax

USD

EUR

+5

+5

+5

+5

14,641

(2,1791

(37,411)

(3,66s)

The Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is as follovr

2015

In thousand Armenian drams Freely Non'freely
Armenian convertlble convertible

Dram currencles currencles 'fotal

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Amounts due from other financial institutions

Loans and ad'vances to customers

Investments available for sale

Securities pledged under repurchase
agreements

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Amounts due to financial institutions

Amounts due to customers

Trading financial liabilities

Subordinate debts

Other borrowirngs

Other liabilities

32,883,006

10,240,336

2,557,938

794,78'l

3,106,286

493,680

94,701

'i-7,287,722

6,527,657

6,167,074

11 ,184,659
389,081

8,587,674

26,861

7,561,379

2,684,615

25,563,390

99,306

2,4',t0

35,91 1 ,100

279,794

30,007,447

5,306,737

470,091

72,0',l.6

14,559,127

8,92:1,705

36,748,049

488,387

8,s87,674

29,271

69,887

69,336,213

10,520,133

33,1 20,887

794,781

8,413,023

493,680

165,185

35,663,865 556,102 53,50:/,689

542,'107

3

555,502

597

Net position as at 31 December 2015 15,595,284 241,235 (13,995) 15,828,524

Commitments and contingent liabillties as at ,1,060,890 47'1,279 - 1,532,169
31 December2015

Total financial assets

Total financial liabilities

Total effect of derivative financial instruments

Net position as at 31 December 2014

Commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2014

31,959,959

33,667,000

921,442

(785,599) (902,498)

979,245 68,781,722

987.327 53,976,931

(8s4,416) 27,026

35,842,518
'19,322,604

1 6,51 9,914 14,831 ,81 7

364,516 569,147 13,804 947,467

Freely conveftible currencies represent mainly US dollar amounts, but also include cuftencies ftom

other OECD counfties. Non-freely convertible amounts relate to currencies of CIS countries,

excluding B.epublic of Atmenia.
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35.3 Liiquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due undet norrnal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, rnanagernent has arranged diversified
funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and
monitots firture cash flows and liquidity on a datly bases. This incorporates an assessment of
expected ca,sh flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure

additional firnding if required.

The Bank maintains a pofifolio of hrghly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated
in the event of an unfoteseen interuption of cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit
that it can tlccess to rneet liquidity needs. In addition, the Bank maintains an obligatory minimum
resefve dep,rsits vdth the Central Bank of Armenia equal to 2To of certain obligatioris of the Bank
denorninated in Armenian drams and 20o/o on certain obligations of the Bank deqominated in
foreign cufi:ency. See note 14, The liquidity position is assessed and managed under a vaiety of
sceoatios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and
speciftcally to the Bank.

The liquidity management of the Bank requites consideting the level of liquid assets necessary to
settle obliga.tions as they fall due; marntarning access to a range of funding soruces; maintaining
funding contingency plans and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against tegulatory
requirernents. The Bank calculates liquidity ratios in accordance qzith the requkement of the Central
Bank of Arrnenia.

Not audited

As at 31 December, these ratios were as follows; 2015,01o 2014,%

50

N21- Total liquidity ratio
(Highly liquid arssets/ Total assets)

H22- Cunent liquidity ratio
(Highly liquid arssets /liabilities on demand)

28.60

173.34

28.79

181 .58

Analysis of l'inancial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.
The table b,elow surnmarises the maturity profrle of the Bank's lnancial liabilities at 31 December

2015 based on contractual undiscounted tepayrnent obligations. See note 34 for the expected

maturities of these liabiJities. Repayments which are subject to notice arc fte^ted as if notice were to
be given immediately. However, the Bank expects that many customers will not request repayment

on the earliest date the Bank could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected

cash flows indicated by the Bank's deposit retention history.
In thousand Armenian drams

Demand and
less than 1

month

From
1to3

months

From
31o12 From

months ltoSyears
More than 5

years Total

NON.DERIVATIVE FI NANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amounts due to financial institutions 9,956,179 12,715

Trading fi nancial liabilities

Amounts due to customers

Subordinate debts

Other borrowings

794,781

12,937,4',|.1 1 ,636,235
288,263 1,026,610

231,730

12,426,636

2,'t 80,851

277,974

280,946

7,626,188

6,334,503

257,018

230,930 10,712,500
- 794,781

1,042 34,527,512
- 9,930,227

- 534,992

- 165,185

231,972 56,565,197

Other liabilities 91,964 f3,221
Totafundfscountednon-derivative 23,968,59g 2,748,781 15,117,,191 14,498,655
flnancial liabilities

Credit risk related carmmitments 689,1 1 6 1,532,169672,400 27,500 143,153
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Demand and less
than 1 month

From
1 to 3 months

From
3to12

months 1

From
to 5 years Total

NON.DERIVA,TIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Mounts due to financial institutions
Trading finanoial instruments

Amounts due to customers
Debt securlties issued
Subordinate d,Bbt

Other bonowings
Other liabilitiec;

Total undlscorunted non-
derivative financial tiabitifl es

Credit risk related commitments

DERIVATIVE I=INANCIAL LIABILITIES
Foreign exchange spot
transactions
Inflow

Outflow

10,047,266

3,106,052

I 0,498,3't7

40,461

13,413

2,427

101 ,864

964,440

1,531,032

39,1 57

326,1 45

12,988,691

235,331

254,733

5,213

5,598,430

6,975,086

4,026,959

570,381

't1,343,064

3, t06,052

30,616,470

7,290,035

4,040,372

827,541

101 ,864

13,804,900 l?Ji6^06, 57,325,398

921 ,442
894,416

92,540 335,286 509,175 s47,467

921,442

894,416

35,4 Operational rtsk
operational risk is the risk of ditect or indirect loss arising ftom a wide vadety of causes associated
'qdth the Bank's involvement 'with f,rnancial instruments, including processes, personnel, technology
and infrastructure, and ftom external factors other than cred.it, tarket and iquidity risks such as
those adsing; ftom legal and regulatoqr tequirements and generally accepted ,turrduri, of corporate
behaviour.

The Bank's objective is to manage operational dsk so as to balance the avoidance of frnancial losses
and damage to the Bank's teputation with ovemll cost effectiveness.

The primary resPonsibi[ty fot the development and implementation of controls to address
opetational risk is assigned to the Risk Management department, Board of the Bank and
Managernent Board' This tesponsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the
maoagement of operational risk rr the followifig areas:

' reguitements for appropriate segtegation of duties, including the independent authorisation
of transactions;

o reguirernents for the reconciliation and monitoring of ftansactions;
t corn'Plance with regulatory and other legal requirerpents, including the minimal

requirements of the central Bank of fumenia on internal control system;
o docuLmentation of controls and procedures;

' fequ:irernents fot the ped.odic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of
controls and procedutes to address the risks identified;

t requfements for the teporting of operational losses and ptoposed remedial action;
o development of contingency plans;
o train:ing and ptofessional development;
o ethical and business standards; and
. risk rnitigation.
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Compliance with Bank standards is suppoted by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by
Intemal Audit. The results of Intemal Audit reviews are discussed u/ith the management of the
Bank to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Board of the Bank.

36 Gapital adequacy
The Bank rnaintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business, The
adequacy of the Bank's capital is monitored using, among other measufes, the rules and ratios
established in 1988 by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision ('tsIS rules/ratios') and
adopted by the Cental Bank of Armenia in supervising the Bank.

The primari objectives of the Bank's capital rnanagement are to ensrre that the Bank complies vdth
externally irmposed capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong cred.it ratings and
healthy caPita,l ratios in order to support its business and to maxirnise shareholders'value.

The Bank ffranages its capital structure and makes adjustrnents to it in the light of changes in
econornic c'onditions and the risk characteristics of its activities, In order to maintain or adju-st the
capital stfucture, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, retum
capital to shareholdets or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the objectives, polices
and processes from the previous years,

The minimum tatio between total capital and risk weighted assets required by the Cenral Bank of
Armenia is'l7oh.

Regulatory capital consists of Tier I capttal, which comprises charter capttal, retained earnings
including cuf,rent year prcfit, and genetal feserve. Regulatory capital is calculated in accordance rvith
the tequirernents of the Central Bank of Armenia and accounting standards of the Republic of
Armenia. Tjhe othet component of regulatory capital is Tier 2 capital, vzhich includes revaluation
feserves andl subordinated debt.

The risk-weighted assets are measuted by means of a hietarchy of dsk weights classified according
to the nature of and reflecting an estirnate of credit, market and opetating risks.

As of 31 December 2075 and 20L4 the arnount of regulatory capital, risk vzaited assets and capital
adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with the requirements of Central Bank of Armenia are
provided below.
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Not audited
In thousand Armenian drams 2015 2014

Tier'l capital

Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory capital
Risk-weighted assets

Capital adequacy ratlo

17,240,699

5,825,272

23,065,971

66,243,454

17,066,878

1,410,119

't8,476,997

63,713,783

34.82%

The Bank has complied vdth all externally imposed capitalreguirernents through the period.

The Central Bank of Armenia has set the minimal required total
thousand as of 1. January 201,7,

To reach tl-re requitement of the Centtal Bank of Armenia on the
regulatory capital the Bank's charter capital and other elements

capital at AMD 30,000,000

minimum size of the Total
of the tegulatory capital,


